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Ceriified Public Accountants
Trade Tower, 23 Hamered Street
Tel Aviv 68123 Israel

PO Box 432 Tel Aviv 61003
Telephone +972-3-7954555
Facsimile +972-3-78543556

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTFERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders of
ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Orckit Communications Ltd. (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries as of December 3 I, 2009 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2009,  The Company’s Board of Directors and management are responsible for these
tinancial statements. OQut responsibility is o express an opinion on these financial staternents based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are tree of materjal misstatement and whether
effective Internal control over financial teporting was maintained in all matetial respects Qur audits of the
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaiuating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that owr audits provide

a reasonable basis for our opinion

In owr opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company and its subsidiarjes as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the thres-year period ended December 31; 2009,
i conformity with accounting principles genetally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in note 1c to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for other-than-temporary Impairment of debt securities in 2009 Tn addition, as discussed in note
1k to the consclidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for uncertainty

in income taxes in 2007

/s/ Kesselman & Kesselman
Certified Public Accountants (Is1 )
A membet of
PricewaterhouseCoopets
International Limited

Tel Aviv, Israel
February 22, 2010

Kesselman & Kesselman is a member of PrcewaterhouseCoopers International I imited a compaity limited by guarantes registered in Encland and Wales
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An Israeli Corporation)
CONSOLIDATED BAT ANCE SHEETS
(U S doilais in thousands)

Assets

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Marketable securities (note 9a, I¢)

Other securities {note 3a, 10)

Bank deposit (note 9e)

Trade receivables (note 9b)

Other current assets (note 9¢)

Inventories (note 9d, 1d)

T otal current assets

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS:

Marketable securities (note 9a, 1¢)

Other {note lc, 3a) '

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net (note 2, le, 1f)
DEFERRED ISSUANCE COSTS, net of accumulated amotrtization (note 1g)
Total assets
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
T1ade payables
Accrued expenses and other payables (note 91)
Deferred income (note 9g)
T otalcurrent habilities
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Accrued severance pay and other (note 3, 1k)
Convertible subordinated notes (note 4)
T otallong-term liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY (note 5)
T otallizbilities
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (note 6):
Share capital - ordinary shares of no par value

(authorized: 50,000,000 shares; issued: December 31, 2008 — 19,048,336 shares;
December 31, 20009 - 19,212,601 shares; outstanding: December 31, 2008 -
16,403,497 shares; December 31, 2009 — 16,567,762 shares) and additional

paid in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Ireasury shares, at cost (2,644,839 ordinary shares)
Total shareholders' equity
I otalliabilities and shareholders' equity

Pecember 31

T

2008 2009
$15,245 $8,109
31,486 18,170
1,148

1,509 4,000
3,820 458
3,638 1,145
1,771 2,702
57,460 35,732
18,590 15,916
4,165 3,294
22,755 19,210
1,378 1,103
596 312
$82,189  $56,357
$4.654  $4,454
8,296 6,976
2,787 1,371
15,737 12,801
3,960 4,096
25,731 21,996
29691 26,092
45,428 38,893
341,692 343,418
(296,652) (319,714)
(2,635) (596)
(5,644)  (5,644)
36,761 17,464
$82,189  $56,357

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID,

{(An Israeii Corpolation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(U.S dollars in thousands, except per share data)

REVENUES (note 9%, 11)
COST OF REVENUES (note 91)
GROSS PROFIT
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES - net (note 97, 11}
SELLING, GENERAT AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES
OPERATING LOSS
FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES ) - net (note 9k)
GAIN FROM EARLY EXTINGUISHMENT OF NOTES
INCOME (EXPENSES) FROM DEVALUATION OF CONVERSION
FEATURE EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE NOTES (note 4)
LITIGATION SETTLEMENT INCOME (note 91)

NET LOSS

LOSS PER SHARE (“EPS”) (note 9n, In):
Basic
Diluted

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES
USED IN COMPUTATION OF EPS (in thousands):
Basic

-Diluted

Year ended December 31

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statenients.

2007 2008 2009
$0,906  $17,256  $12,727
4,826 9,606 8,244
5,080 7,650 4483
20,158 22,859 13,608
16,902 19,164 15,677
31,980)  (34373)  (24,802)
2,172 (179) (362)
. - 2,085
3,480 2,265 (883)
14,231 -
$(12,097)  $(32,287)  $(23,062)
$(0.76) $(1.97) $(1.40)
$(0.76) $(1.97) $(1.40)
15,911 16,386 16,483
15,911 16,386 16,483
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS L1D.

(An Istaeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(US. dollais in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net loss for the year
Adjustmerits to 1econcile net Joss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization:
Property and equipment
Deferted issuance costs
Accrued interest, prémium amortization and curtency differences on
marketable secutities
Impairtment of marketable securities
Increase (decrease) in accrued severance pay
Compensation related to employee stock option grants, net
Revaluation (devaluation) of conversion feature embedded in
convertible notes
Adjusiments in the value of convertible notes
Gaia from eatly extinguishment of convertible subordinated notes
Increase in other long-term liabilities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables and other current assets
Dectease in trade payables, accrued expenses
and other payables
Increase (decrease) in deferred income
Decrease (increase) in inventories

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of propesty and equipment
Change in funds in respect of accrued severance pay, net
Investment in long term investments
Bank deposits, net
Proceeds fiom marketable securities held to maturity
Proceeds from matketable securities available for sale
Purchase of matketable secwities held to maturity
Purchase of marketable securities available for sale

Net cash provided by investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Exercise of options granted to employees
Issuance of convertible subordinated notes, net of $91 7,000 issuance costs

Early extinguishment of convertible subordinated notes
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION — CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR FOR:

Interest paid
Advances paid to income tax authorities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended December 31

i

=T

2007 2008 2009
$(12,007)  $(32287)  $(23,062)
1,715 990 740
136 185 150
7431)  (2,117) (849)
iy 415 97

12 (186) (308)
2,664 3,511 1,691
(3.480)  (2,.265) 883
3,004 2,520 1,324

; (2,985)

17 17 20
1,077 (5,456) 5,534
(2,509) 6) (934)
2.151) 1,742 (1,416)
2,117 (424) (931)
(15722)  (33.361)  (20,046)
(613) (984) (465)
(281) 116 44
(134) (14)

- (2.500)
39,022 35,537 29,733
81 836 481
27,606) (13,001}  (6,163)
(5.703) (840)  (5.270)
4766 21,650 15,860
749 160 35
24,835
- (2,985)
25,584 160 (2,950)
14628  (1L,55D)  (7.136)
12,168 26,796 15,245
$26,796  $15.245 $8,109
51,268 $2.011 $1,545
535 $35 385




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID
(An Israeh Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

a. (General:
1) Nature of operations

Orckit Communications Ltd. (“Orckit”) is an Israeli corporation Orckit and its
subsidiaries, mainly Orckit-Corrigent (“Corrigent”) (together - the “Company™) are
engaged in the design, development, manufactute and marketing of advanced telecom
equipment, targeting high capacity broadband setrvices The Company's products are
transport telecommunication equipment targeting high capacity packetized metropolitan
networks. The Company has two product lines : the CM-100 line and the CM-4000 line.
To date, the substantial majority of revenues were derived from sales of products in the

CM-100 product line.

The Company has entered into distribution agieements with one customer relating to the
deployment in Japan of its CM-100 preducts. Under the distribution agreements and related
terms, the Company is obligated to provide warranty and support services with respect to
products purchased. The substantial majority of the Company’s revenues in the year ended

December 31, 2007 were related to these agreements

In 2008, the Company entered into an agreement for the sale of its CM-100 and CM-4000
product lines to a German customer as a network infrastiucture building block for network

solutions deployment.

In the year ended December 31, 2008, the substantial majority of the Company’s revenues
were related fo these agreements in Japan and Germany

In 2009, the Company enlarged its customer base and its revenues were detived fiom
several customers in addition to these agreements. See note 9h.

The Company currently procures a number of major components of its products from
single source suppliers

2)  Functional currency

The currency of the primary economic environment in which the operations of the
Company are conducted is the U.S. dollar (“dollar” or “$), since most purchases of
materials and components are made in dollars and most of its assets are denominated in

dollars.

Iransactions and balances originaily denominated in dollars are presented in their
original amounts. Balances in non-dollar curtencies are transiated into dollars using
historical and curtent exchange rates for non-monetary and monetary balances,
respectively. For non-dollar transactions reflected in the statements of operations, the
exchange rates at transaction dates are used Depreciation and amortization and changes
in inventories derived from non-monetary items are based on historical exchange rates.
The resulting currency transaction gaing or losses are cartied to financial income or

expenses, as appropriate.

E-7
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ORCKIT COMBUNICATIONS LID
(An Istaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued):

3)  dccounting principles

T'he consolidated financial statements ate prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP") in the United States

In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Beard ("FASB") issued the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification (the “Codification”). The Codification became the
source of authoritative, nongovernmental GAAP, except for rules and interpretive releases
of the SEC, which are sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. All other
accounting literature not included in the Cedification will become nonauthoritative The
Codification is effective for financial statements for intetim o1 ansual reporting periods
ending after September 15, 2009 Accoidingly, references to previous standards have been

omitted in these financial statements.

4} Use of estimates in the prepor ation of financial statements

Ihe preparation of financial statements in conformity with U S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosute of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reported years. Actual results could differ fiom those estimates.

5)  Subseguent evenis

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 21, 2010, the date of issuance
of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements

b. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Orckit and its
subsidiaties. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

c. Marketable securities and other investments:

1) Marketable securities

Debt secuzities that the Company plans to hold to maturity, and based on its assessment,
has the ability to hold to maturity, are classified as “held to maturity” and are recorded at
amortized cost The premium ot discount is amortized over the period to maturity and

included in financial income or expenses

Debt securities that the Company considers selling prior to matirity ate classified as available-for-
sale. [hese securities are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported asa
sepatate component of comprehensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity When securities do
not have an active market, fair value is determined using a valuation model Unrealized losses that
are considered to be other-than-temporary are charged to income as an impairment char ge. Realizec
gains and losses on sales of secutities, as well as premium or discount amortization, are included in
the consolidated statement of operations as financial income or expenses. The Company does not
hold these securities for trading purposes. These secwities are classified as short-term investments

k-8




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES 1O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1- SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

2)

Tn April 2009, the FASB issued new accounting guidance for recognition and presentation of other-
than-temporary impairments. This guidance amends the other-than-temporary impaiiment gnidance
for debt securities Pursuant to this guidance, an other -than-temporary impaitment is now triggered
when thete is intent to sell the security, it is more fikely than not that the security will be required tc
be sold before recovery of its amortized cost basis, or the entity does not expect to 1ecover the
entire amortized cost basis of the secuzity. If the debt security’s market value is below amortized
cost and the Company either intends to sell the security o1 it is more likely than not that the
Company will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost biasis, the
Company 1ecords an other-than-temporary impairment charge to financial expenses for the entire
amount of the impaitment. For the remaining debt securities, if an other-than-temporary impairmen
exists, the Company separates the other-than- temporary impalirment into the credit loss pertion and.
the non-credit loss poition The credit loss portion is the difference between the amortized cost of
the security and the Company’s best estimate of the present value of the cash flows expected to be
collected fiom the debt security. The non-credit loss portion is the residual amourit of the other.
than-temperary impaivment The credit loss portion is recorded as a charge to financial expenses,
and the non-credit loss portion is recorded as a separate component of other comprehensive income
(loss). Prior to the effective date of this guidance, the entire other-than-temporary impairment
charge was recognized in earnings for all debt securities. The Company adopted this guidance in
2009 The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial

condition and results of operations

Other investments

These investments include severance pay finds (December 31, 2008 - $3 million;
December 31, 2009 — $3.3 million)} and, on December 31, 2008, an equity investment
amounting to $1.1 million recorded at cost, During December 2009, an agreement to sell
this equity investment was signed, and was completed in JTanuary 2010. Accordingly, at
December 31, 2009, this equity investment was presented in "Other securities” in Cuirent

Assets

F-9
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An [srasli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

d.

€.

T

Inventories

Inventories, ate valued at the lower of cost or matket. Cost is determined as follows:

Raw materials and supplies - on moving average,

Einished products - on basis of production costs:
Raw materials and supplies - on moving average hasis
Labor and production cost - on avetage basis

Cost of finished products that are manufactured completely by subcontractors ate
determined based on the specific cost of each product The Company writes down
ptoduct inventory based on fotecasted demand and technological obsolescence.

Property and equipment:

1) These assets are stated at cost.
2)  The assets are depreciated by the straight-line method on the basis of their estimated

useful life, as follows:

Years
Compulers, software and equipment 3
Office furniture and equipment 10

Leasehold improvetnents are amortized by the straight-line method, over the term of the lease,
or over the estimated useful life of the improvements - whichever is shorter

Impairment in value of property and equipment

Long-lived assets, held and used by the Company are 1eviewed for impairment whenever
events ot changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable If the sum of the expected future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest
charges) of long-lived assets is less than the catrying amount of such assets, an impairment
loss would be recognized, and the assets would be wiitten down to their estimated fair

values.

Deferred issuance costs

Tssuance costs in the original amount of $917,000 in connection with the convertible
subordinated notes were deferred and ate amortized over the period from issuance date to
March 2012. Upon early repurchase of such notes, applicable issuance costs were offset
against the gain recorded, proportionately to the amounts of notes repurchased {see note 4)

Treasury shares

Ordinary shares purchased by the Company are presented as a reduction of shareholders’
equity, at their cost to the Company

P-10
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS 1.ID.
(An [sraeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOIE I - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

I

Revenue recognition

Revenues from sales of products ate recognized when delivery occuts and title passes to the
customer, provided that appropriate signed documentation of an arrangement exists, the fee is

fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured

According to US GAAP, software revenue recognition guidance also applies to non-software
deliverables, such as computer hardware, if the software is essential to the functionality of
the non-softwate deliverables, as is the case with the Company’s deliverables. Accordingly,
revenues fiom sales of software products ate recogaized when, in addition to the criteria
mentioned above, vendor-specific objective evidence ("VSOE™) of fair value for undelivered
elements exists. VSOE Is typically based on the price charged when an slement is sold
separately o, if an element is not soid separately, on the ptice established by authorized
management, if it is probable that the price, once established, wiil not be changed when this
element is commercially sold.

Ihe Company grants to customers post-contract hardware and software support services
(“PCS”) in connection with its sales. Accordingly, until VSOE of the fait value of PCS was
determined, the Company recognized 1evenue for the entire arrangement ratably over the
tetm of the PCS. Through 2007, the Company did not have VSOE of the fair value of PCS.
In 2008, the Company established VSOE of the fair value of PCS, following several
instances in which the PCS was sold separately. Therefore, in 2008 and 2009, revenues fiom
the sale of products were recognized upon delivery (when the criteria mentioned above ate
met), and the fair value of PCS is deferred and recognized over the term of the PCS. In
addition, the revenues that were deferred due to lack of VSOE, wete recognized upon

establishment of VSOE, in 2008.

In 2008, the Company granted in one of its sales agreements a 1ight to purchase, at a
discount, upgrades to the systems sold during a limited petiod. The applicable portion of the
discount ascribed to a portion of the sales with respect to which the company assessed an
upgrade might be performed, was deferred. The deferred revenues are recognized when the
Company estimates that the customer will not exercise the purchase right it has received, or
when the right expires In 2009, upon lapse of that limited period, the applicable deferred
revenues were recognized.

The Company does not, in the normal cowrse of business, provide a right of return to its
customers

The deferred income balance as of December 31, 2008 and 2009 squals the amount of
revenues that were due on delivery, but deferred, less applicable product warranty and other
costs The deferred income balance as of December 31, 2008 also includes 1evennues
allocated to the right to product upgrades detailed above See also note 9g.

See also note 1t(1) regarding a change in accounting guidance with respect fo multiple
deliverable revenue arrangements and software revenue arrangements

I rsa




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Isiacli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSCOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES {continued):

J. Provision for warranty

k.

The Company grants wattanty servicing for products sold. The Company expenses such
watranty costs at the time revenues fiom the related sales are recognized. (See also Note 1
above ) The annual provision is calculated as a percentage of sales, based on historical

experience

Uncertainty in income taxes

The Company implements accounting guidance for accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes Accordingly, a two-step approach to recognizing and measuting uncertain tax
positions is applied. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by
determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that
the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation
processes, if any lhe second step is to measure the tax benefit as the lar gest amount that is
mote than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company's policy is to
mclude inferest and penalties related to uniecognized tax benefits within financial expenses.

1. Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses, which consist mainly of labort costs, are charged to
income as incarred. Government grants received for development of projects are recognized

as a reduction of these expenses
Nonrefundable advance payments for goods or services that will be used or rendered for

future research and development activities are deferred and amortized over the period that the
goods are delivered or the related services are performed, subject to an assessment of

recoverability.

Cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments, which include short-term bank deposits
(up to three months from date of deposit) that are not restricted as to withdrawal ot use, to be

cash equivalents




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
{An Istaeli Cotporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

n. Loss per share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of
shates outstanding during each year, net of treasury shates

T'he convertible subordinated notes and the outstanding stock options have been excluded
fiom the calculation of the diluted EPS for each of the three vears ended December 31, 2009
due to their anti-dilutive effect See also Note 9n

0. Comprehensive loss

The Company’s comprehensive loss consists of its net loss and, in the years ended December
31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, of unrealized gains and losses derived from malketab & securities
chss1fzed as available for sale (See also Note 1c above).

p.  Stock based compensation

Accounting guidance requires that awards classified as equity awards be accounted for using
the grant-date fair value method. The fair value of share-based payment transactions is
recognized as expense over the requisite service period, net of estimated forfeitures. The
Company estimated forfeitures based on historical expetience and anticipated future

conditions.

Ihe Company elected to recognize compensation cost for an award with only service
conditions that has a graded vesting schedule using the strzight-line method over the
requisite service period for the entite award. Awards that vest upon performance conditions
are recognized using the accelerated method based on the multiple-option award approach.

The valuation provisions apply to new awards and to awards modified, repurchased, or
cancelled after July 1, 2005. Additionally, compensation cost for the portion of awards for
which the requisite service has not been rendered that were outstanding as of Tuty 1, 2005
were recognized over the remaining setvice period using the grant-date fair value of those
awards as calculated for pro forma disclosure putposes under previous accounting guidance.

F-13
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID
(An Istaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

q.

Deferred income taxes

Deferred taxes are determined utilizing the asset and liability method, based on the
estimated future tax effects diffeiences between the financial accounting and tax bases of
assets and liabilities under the applicable tax laws Valuation allowances are included in
tespect of deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that no such assets will be

realized See Note 7d

Taxes which would apply in the event of dispesal of investments in non-Israeli subsidiaries
have not been taken into account in computing deferred taxes, as it is the Company’s policy

to Tiold these investments, and not to realize them

Shipping and handling fees and costs

Shipping and handling costs are classified as a component of cost of 1evenues

Fair Value Measurement

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted accounting guidance as to fair value
measurements. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer a liability (i ¢, the “exit price”} it an orderly transaction between matket
participants at the measurement date

In determining fair value, the Company uses varjous valuation approaches, including
market, income and/ot cost approaches Accouinting guidance establishes a hietarchy for
inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and
minimizes the use of unobservable mputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be
used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market patticipants would use in
pticing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
Company. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s assumptions about
the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the
best information available in the circumstances. The hicrarchy is divided into thiee levels
based on the reliability of inputs. For further disclosure, see Note 8
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ORCKIT COMNMUNICATIONS L1D.
(An Istaelt Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOUIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1-SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

t Recently Issued Accounting Guidance
1) Multiple Deliverable Revenue Arniangements

In October 2009, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance for multiple deliverable
revenue arrangements, which provides guidance on determining whether multiple
deliverables in a revenue anangement exist, how the artangement should be sepaiated, and
the consideration allocated Accordingly, when vendot specific objective evidence or third
party evidence for deliverables in an arrangement cannot be determined, a best estimate of
the selling price is required to separate deliverables and allocate artangement consideration,
generally, using the relative selling price method. In addition, the residual method of
allocating arrangement consideration is no longer permitted

This guidance is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or
matetially modified in fiscal yeats beginning on or after June 15, 2010. Early adoption is
permitied The Company is cutrently evaluating the potential impact of this updated
guidance on its consolidated financial position, resulits of operations and cash flows, as well

as examination of the adoption date of that guidance,

2) Software revenue arzangements

In October 2009, the FASB issusd an update to accounting guidance for software tevenue
recognition This update amends the scope of the software revenue guidance to exclude,
inter alia, nonsoftware components of tangible products and software components of
tangible products when the software components and nonsoftware components of the
tangible product function together to deliver the tangible product’s essential functionality
This guidance is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into o1
matetially modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010 Eatly adoption is
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of ASU 2009-14 on
its consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows, as well as

examination of the adoption date of that guidance

i
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LD
{An Isiaeli Cotporation)

NOTES 10O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Composition of assets, grouped by major classification, is as follows:

December 31
2008 2009
In thousands

Cost:

Computets, software and equipment $13,974 $5,332
Office furniture and equipment 314 146
Leasehold improvements 486 226
$14,774 $5,704

Less - accumulated depreciation and ameitization 13,396 4,601
$1,378 $1,103

Depreciation and amortization expenses totaled $1,719,000, $990,000 and $740,000 in the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively In the year ended December 31, 2009,
the Company discarded fixed assets which were nio longet in use Ihis did not have any effect on
the statement of opetations since al! discarded assets were fully depreciated.

NOTE 3 - SEVERANCE PAY:

a.

Israeli labor laws and agreements require payment of severance pay upon dismissal of an
employee or upon termination of employment in certain other circumstances. The
Company's severance pay liability to its employees, mainly based upon length of service and
the latest monthly salary (one month’s salary for cach year worked), is reflected by a balance
sheet accrual under “accrued severance pay and other” The Company 1ecords the liability as
if' it were payableat each balance sheet date on an undiscounted basis
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
{An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 3 - SEVERANCE PAY (continued):

The liability is partly funded by purchase of insurance policies of pension funds and by
deposit of funds in dedicated deposits. The amounts funded are included in the balance sheet
under “long term investments - other”. The policies are the Company’s assets and under
labor agreements, subject to certain limitations, they may be transferred to the ownership of
the beneficiary employees The amounts funded as of December 31, 2008 and 2009 are

approximately $3,338,000 and $3,294,000, 1espectively

According to substantially all of the Company’s cutrent agreements, the Company makes
tegular deposits with insurance companies in order to secure employees’ rights upon
retirement Thus, in accordance with these agreements, the Company is fully relieved from
any severance pay lability. The lability accrued in respect of these employees and the
amounts funded, as of the agieement date, are not reflected in the balance sheets, since the

amounts funded are not under the control and management of the Company.

The Company accounts for severance pay liability as contemplated by accounting guidance
with respect to vested benefit obligation for defined benefit pension plans and, accordingly,
records the obligation on an nndiscounted basis as if it were payable at each balance sheet

date
The amonnts of pension and severance pay expense were $1 3 million, §1.4 million and $1.1
million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively, of which §1 3

million, $1 3 million and $900,000 in the years ended December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009,
respectively, were in respect of the insurance policies that wete expensed but not reflected in

the balance sheet as described above.

The Company expects to contribute approximately $1.4 million in 2010 to insurance
companies and pension funds, in respect of its severance pay liabilities expected for 2010
operations

Ihe Company does not expect to pay material future benefits o its employees upon theit
normal tetitement age in the years 2010 through 2019 since there are no current employees
who reach retirement age until vear 2019

The statement in item d above does not inclucde amounts that might be paid to employees who
will cease working for the Company before their normal retirement age

e




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Istaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 — CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOIES

On Maich 27, 2007, Orckit issued approximately $25 0 million principal amount of convertible
subordinated notes {the “Notes™) in a private placement The Notes were issued at their par value of
NIS 107 mitlion The Notes are due in 2017, linked to the Israeli consumer price index (“CPI”) and
pay intetest, in NIS, semi-anaually at the rate per annum of 6%, linked to the Israeli CPI. Holders of
the Notes have the tight to request repayment of the ptincipal amount (par vahie linked to the Israeli
CPI) in March 2012 The Notes are convettible af the election of the holders, at any time, into
ordinary shares of Orckit at the initial conversion price of NIS 52 5 {equivalent to $12.50 per share on
issuance date) if the conversion occurs within three years of issuance and at the initial conversion price
of NIS 63 (equivalent to $15.00 per share on issuance date) if the conversion occurs thereafter, in each
case subject to adjustment for customary events. Orckit has the 1ight to foree conversion of the Notes
if the market price of its ordinary shares exceeds $30.00 per share on 20 trading days within any
consecutive 30 trading day period, subject to adjustment for customary events. Orckit listed the Notes
on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange Based on the conversion zate applicable at December 31, 2009,
taking into account the buy back of a portion the Notes, see below, the Notes are convertible into

1,542,857 ordinary shares of the Company

The Company las determined that the conversion featwe of the Notes is an embedded derivative.
According to accounting guidance, if an embedded derivative is indexed to the reporting entity's own
stock and would be classified in shareholders’ equity if it was a freestanding derivative, that embedded
derivative is not considered a derivative Since the conversion price of the Notes 1s denominated in
NIS, while the Company’s functicnal cuitency is the U S dolla:, this embedded derivative would not
be classified in shareholders’ equity if it were a fieestanding derivative; therefore the conversion
feature is a derivative that should be accounted for separately Since the economic characteristics and
1isks of the conversion feature are not cleerly and closely related to the economic characteristics and
1isks of the host contract, the Notes, and since the Notes are not recorded at fair value, the conversion

option is sepatated and measured as a dezivative.

The Company measured the fair value of the conversion feature on the issuance date at approximately
$4 .8 million. Since approximately $25 million was taised, the remaining $20 million was allocated to
the Notes, thereby creating a discount and increasing the effective interest rate. The discount is
amortized over the period from issuance date to March 2012, the eazliest possible repayment date. The
amortized balance of the discount at December 31, 2009 was $2 3 million (December 31, 2008 - $2 8
million). The amortized balance of the discount at December 31, 2009 is net of a relative portion of the
amount due to the repurchase of a portion of the Notes, see below. The conversion feature is evaluated
at each reporting period, and the difference in fair value is recorded as financial income or expense.

At December 31, 2009, mainly due to the decline in the Company’s share price, the fair value of the
conversion feature had decreased by approximately $4.9 million since the date of issuance (December
31, 2008 - §5 8 million). The change in the fair value of the conversion feature in 2009 includes the
elimination of a portion of the amount due to the repurchase of a portion of thé Notes, see below.

During 2009, the Company (through its subsidiary) used $3 0 miilion to repurchase
approximately $6 3 million in principal amount of the Notes (based on exchange 1ates at the time

of the transactions). The repurchase resulted in a gain of approximately $3.0 million

The fair value of the Notes at December 31, 2009 after the repuzchase, as traded as assets on the
Iel Aviv Stock Exchange, is approximately $14 4 million (December 31, 2008 - $10 2 million).

See also Note 8d.
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An Isteeli Cotporation)

NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 5 - COMMITMENTS AND CONITINGENT LIABILITY:

a. Royalty commitment

The Company is committed to pay oyalties to the Government of Istael on proceeds from
sales of products whose research and development was funded, in part, by Goverrment
grants At the time the grants weie received, successful development of the 1elated projects

was not assured.

In the case of failure of a project that was partly financed by royalty-beating Government
participations, the Company is not obligated to pay any royalties to the Government

The royalty rate, based on the sales of products resulting from funded reseaich and
development projects, was fixed at 3% during the first thiee years and 3 5-4 5% thereafte:
Rovyalties are paid bianneally and are payable up to 100% of the amount of such grants, with
the addition of annual interest based on LIBOR Rovalty expenses are classified as part of

cost of revenues

In the event that any of the manufacturing rights or technology is transferred out of Tsrael,
subject to the approval of the Government of Israel, the Company would be requited to pay
royalties at a higher rate and an increased aggregate payback amount in the range of 120% to
300% of the grants received, based on the applicable project. The total aggregate contingent
[iability of the Company in respect of royalties to the Government of Israel at December 31,

2009 was approximately $12 5 million (excluding interest accrued)

Rovyalty expenses totaled $712,000, $690,000 and $509,000 in the years ended December
31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively, and are included in the statements of operations in

cost of revenues.

b. Lease commitments

The Company has entered into several operating lease agreements with respect to its offices.
The main agreement is for the premises it uses in I[stael. The Company has an option to
terminate this lease agreement with a six-month notice in advance.

The projected annual rental payments for 2010 and for subsequent years, at rates and for
[eases in effect for 2009 at December 31, 2009, are approximately $1,147,000.

Lease expenses totaled $898,000, $1,177,000 and $1,149,000 in the years ended December
31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

NOTE 5- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY (continued):

c.

Contingent liability

In 2006, the Company became subject to litigation regarding the alleged non-fulfillment of
contract obligations The Company has provided for that claim.

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

a.

Share capiial:

1) Orckit's ordinary shares are tiaded in the United States on the Nasdag Giobal Market,
under the symbol "ORCT" and on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange in Istael.

2)  lzeasury shares

The Company holds 2,644,839 otdinaiy shates of Orckit acquired at a cost of
$5,644,000 For as long as such ordinary shares are owned by the Company, they have
no rights and, accordingly, are neither eligible to participate in or receive any future
dividends which may be paid to shareholder s of Orckit nor are they entitled to
participate In, be voted at, or be counted as part of the quorum for, any meeting of

shareholders of Orckit
3) Exercise of options

Under the Employee Shaze Option Plan (see Note 6b below), options te purchase
661,199, 60,763 and 164,176 otdinary shares were exercised in the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively.

Employee Share Option Plan

According to accounting guidance (see also Note 1p), the Company recorded compensation
costs of $2,664,000, $3,511,000 and $1,691,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007,
2008, and 2009, respectively. No income tax benefit was recognized in the income statement

for options granted

In February 1994, Orckit's Board of Directors approved an Employee Share Option Plan (the
"Plan") The total aggiegate number of shares authorized for which options could be granted
under the Plan (as amended in 2003), was 13,511,088 at December 31, 2009, of which
options to purchase 6,759,789 shares have been exercised, options to purchase 5,167,509
shares have been granted and are outstanding and options to purchase 1,583,790 ate
available for future grant. Option awards ate granted with an exercise price as determined
by the Company Option awards generaily vest between one to six years and generally have
a contractual term of from seven to ten years The Company's policy is to issue new shares to

satisfy share option exercises

T




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An [staeh Cotporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued):

As a result of an amendment to Section 102 of the Tax Ordinance as pait of the 2003 Israeli
tax reform, and putsuant to an election made by the Company thereunder, gains detived by
employees (which term includes directots) in Israel arising from the shates acquired pursuant
to the exercise of options granted to them through a trustee under Section 102 of the Tax
Ordinance after January 1, 2003, wili generally be subject to a flat capital gains tax 1ate of
25%, if held by the trustee for the minimum period required by faw In accordance with the
track chosen by the Company, the Company is not allowed to claim, as an expense for tax
purposes, the amounts credited to employees as a benefit, including amounts recorded as
salary benefits in the company’s accounts, in respect of options granted to employees under
the plan - with the exception of the wotk-income benefit component, if any, determined on

the grant date.

The Company grants two types of awatds, (a) non-performance options, which are options
with a vesting period, but no additional performance criteria, and (b) performance goals
options, which are contingent upon meeting specified performance goals. Certain
performance goals options are, in addition to their performance goals, subject to a vesting

period which commences upon meeting the performance goals

Now performance options

The fait value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing mode! Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the
Company’s share price (eliminating nonrecurring one-time events) and other factors. The
Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and employee termination within
the valvation model. The expected term of options granted represents the period of fime that
options granted are expected to be outstanding based on the histotical behavior of

employees.
The risi-free rate for petiods within the expected life of the option is based on the U.S.

Treaswry vield curve in effect at the time of grant. The following assumptions were made in
the computation of the fair value of each option award using the Black-Scholes option-

pricing model

Year ended December 31

2007 2008 2009
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 58 % 61 % 70 %
Risk-free interest rate 4.3% 2.6% 1.2%
Expected life - in yeals 27 2.7 2.7




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
{An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued):

A summary of option activity for non-petformance options (options with a vesting petiod,
but no additional petformance criteria) undet the Plan as of December 31, 2009, and
changes during the year then ended is presented below:

Weighted
Weighted average Aggregate
average remaining intrinsic
Number of gxercise price contractual value (in
Options options {per option) term thousands)
Outstanding at Fanuary 1, 2009 4,456,235 $919
Granted 228,500 $3 20
Exercised (164,176) 021
Fotfeited o1 expired (486,909 $7.51
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 4,033,650 $9 43 372 $1,314
Exercisable at December 31, 2009 2,705,010 §11 67 284 $1,314

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of this type of option granted dwing the vears
2007, 2008, and 2009 was $2.53, $2.11 and $0.89 , 1espectively. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised during the yeats ended December 31, 2007, 2008, and 2009, was $3 6

million, $295,000 and $354,000, respectively

As of December 31, 2009, there was $2. 1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost
related to these nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Plan.
That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2 2 years.

Performance based options -

These awards include options that are contingent upon meeting specified petformance goals.
The fair value of these options was estimated on the date of grant using the same option
valuation model used for non-performance options When the Company assurhes that
performance goals will not be achieved, no compensation cost has been recorded with
respect thereto. Upon reaching the point in time when the Company believes that the
petformance goals will be achieved, the Company will record & catch-up of share based
compensation expenses for all vesting periods completed through that date.




ORCKIT CONMMUNICATIONS L1D.
{An Isiaeli Colporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued):

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the
Company’s share price (eliminating nonrecuiring one-time events) and othet factors The
Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and employee termination within
the valuation model The expected term of options granted represents the period of time that
options granted are expected to be outstanding based on histotical behavior of employees

The risk-fiee rate for periods within the expected life of the option is based on the U §
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.

The following assumptions were made in the computation of the fair value of each of these
option awards using the Black-Schotes option-pricing model In 2009 there wete no grants of

petrformance based options

Year ended Pecember 31

2007 2008 2009
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% N/A
Expected volatility 57 % 60 % N/A
Risk-free interest rate 3.7% 3.4% N/A,

3.1 6.3 N/A

Expected life - in years

A summary of performance based option activity under the Plan as of December 31, 2009,
and changes during the year then ended is presented below:

Weighted Aggregate
average Weighted average intrinsic
Number of exercise price remaining value (in
Options opiions {per option)  contractual term  thousands)
Outstanding at January 1, 2009 1,341,888 $67
(ranted 0
Exercised 0
Forfeited (208,030} $5.97
Qutstanding at December 31, 2009 1,133,858 $6.83 6.48 $119
286,356 $7.98 4.59 $119

Exercisable at December 31, 2009

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of this type of option granted during the yeais
2007 and 2008 was $2 09 and $1 76, respectively




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An Isiaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued):

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31 2007,
2008 and 2009 was $213,000, $0 and $0, respectively

As of December 31, 2009, there was $117,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost
related to these nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Plan.
That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.2 yeats.

When the Company assumes that performance goals will not be achieved, these options are
mncluded with a fair value of $0 and no compensation cost is recorded with respect thereto

The Company modified the exercise price of options in years 2007 and 2008. Information
regarding the modified exercise price of the options appears in the table befow:

Year ended December 31

2007 2008
Number of employees affected 162 149
Total expenses resulting from $776.000 $520.000

meodification

c. Grant of stock and opiion plans of subsidiaries

In 2001, the Board of Directors of Orckit’s major subsidiary, Corzigent, approved an
employee shaze option plan (the “Corrigent Subsidiary Plan™). Corrigent granted, and
reserved for grant, shates and options under its Plan, as applicable, to its employees,
officers and directors and to personnel of Orckit, including employees, officers and
directors of Orckit. As determined by the respective stock option committee, the exercise
price of options granted was zero, which represented the value of the shares on the grant
date The vesting pericd of options granted was up to four years from the date of grant

At the grant date, the intrinsic value and the weighted fair value of options granted by
Corrigent was $0. Accordingly, no compensation expense in 1espect of the options granied
was recorded. At the annual general meeting of shareholders held on.June 23, 2005,
Ozckit's shareholders approved a plan for potential exchanges of Corrigent's options for
options for up to 10% of the outstanding Ordinary Shares of Orckit. Under the terms of the
plan, all the outstanding stock options of Corrigent were exchangeable for options to
purchase shares of Orckit Unde: the terms of the plan, only vested stock options of
Corrigent were offered to be exchanged commencing January 1, 2006 On July 18, 2005,
Orckit’s option committee approved an exchange, effective as of January 1, 2006, of 2
certain amount of Corrigent’s opticns for approximately 500,000 Orckit options. The
exchange was accounted for according to accounting guidance, and since the exchange was
based on the ratio between the fair market value of Cotrigent and Orckit, no additional

compensation expense was recognized

s




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID
(An [sraeli Corporation)

NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued):

d.

In 2007 and 2008, following approvals by Otckit’s audit committee and board of directors,
exchanges of additional amounts of Corrigent’s options for Orckit options occurred. The
exchange included all Cortigent’s outstanding options. 1he exchange was accounted for
according to accounting guidance A portion of the exchange was not based on the ratio
between the fair market value of Cortigent and Orckit. As a result, in 2008, additional
compensation expense was recognized in the amount of $1 8 million

Dividends

In the event cash dividends are declated by the Company, such dividends will be declared

and paid in Israeli currency

Shareholder Bonus Rights Plan

On November 21, 2001, Orckit’s Board of Directors adopted a Shateholder Bonus Rights
Plan (the “Rights Plan”} pursuant to which share purchase bonus rights (the “Rights”) were
distributed on December 6, 2001, at the rate of one Right for each of Orekit’s ordinary
shares held by shareholders of record as of the close of business on that date.

The Rights Plan is intended to help enswe that all of the Company’s shareholdets are able
to realize the long-term value of their investment in the Company in the event of a potential
takeover which does not reflect the full value of the Company and is otherwise not in the
best interests of the Company and its shateholdets. The Rights Plan is also intended to

deter unfair or coercive takeover tactics

The Rights will be exercisable and transferable apart from Orekit’s otdinary shares only if
a person o1 group becomes an “Acquiring Person” by acquiring beneficial ownership of
15% or more of Orckit’s ordinary shares, subject to certain exceptions set fotth in the
Rights Plan, or commences a tender or exchange offer upon consummation of which such
petson or gtoup would become an Acquiring Person Subject to certain conditions
described in the Rights Plan, once the Rights become exercisable, the holders of Rights,
other than the Acquiting Person, will be entitled to purchase ordinaty shares at a discount.

E2s
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 7 - TAXTES ON INCOME:

Tax benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 (the

CIL.a.‘fVJJ)

Under the Law, by virtue of the “appioved enterprise” status granted to the enterprises of
Conigent, the holder of the “approved enterprise” status is entitled to various tax benefits,

including the following:

1) Reduced tax rates

The period of tax benefits is 7 years, commencing in the first year in which the
Company eains taxable income from the approved enterprise, subject to cerfain
limitations. Income dezived from the appioved enterpiise is tax exempt for a petiod of
2 years, after which the income ffom these enterprises is taxable at reduced tax rates

for 5 years, the remainder of the period of tax benefits

2)  Conditions for entitlement to the benefits

The entitlement to the above benefits is conditional upon fulfilling the conditions
stipulated by the Law, regulations published thereunder and the instruments of
approval for the specific investments in approved enterprises. In the event of failure to
comply with these conditions, the benefits may be reduced or cancelled and the
Company may be required to refund the amount of the benefits, in whole or in part,
with the addition of linkage differences to the Istaeli CPI and interest

In the event of distribution of cash dividends out of income which was tax exempt as
above, the Company would have to pay 25% fax in respect of the amount distributed

b, Tax rates applicable to income from other sources:

1) Income from other sources in Israel

Income not eligible for approved enterprise benefits mentioned in Note 7a above is
taxed at the regular rate. Amendments to the Isiaeli Income Tax Ordinance wete
enacted that gradually reduce the corporate tax rate from 36% to 25%, in the following
manner: the rate for 2006 - 31%, 2007 — 29%, 2008 — 27%, 2009 — 26% and 2010 and
thereafter — 25%

In Tuly 2009, the Israeli Patliament (the Knesset) passed the Economic Efficiency Law
(Amended Legislation for Implementing the Economic Plan for 2009 and 2010), 2009,
which prescribes, among other things, an additional gradual reduction in the Israeli
corporate tax 1ate and real capital gains tax rate starting from 2011 to the following tax |
tates: 2011 -24%, 2012 - 23%, 2013 - 22%, 2014 - 21%, 2015 - 20%, 2016 and

thereafter - 18%.

2)  Income of non-Isiaeli subsidiaries

Non-Israeli subsidiaries are taxed according to the tax laws in their countries of tesidence



ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LT,
(An [sraelt Cotporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOIE 7 - TAXES ON INCOME (continued):

Measurement of the results for tax purposes under the Income Tax (Inflationary
Adjustments) Law, 1983

Until December 31, 2007, results for tax puiposes were meagured on a real basis adjusted
for the increase in the Israeli CPI As explained in Note 1a(2), the financial statements are
presented in doflars The difference between the change in the Istaeli CPI and the NIS-
dollar exchange rate, both on annual and cumulative bases, caiises a difference between

taxable income and income reflected in these financial statements

- Effective January |, 2008, the provisions of the Inflationary Adjustments Law will no
longer apply to the Company in 2008 and thereafter

Accounting guidance prohibits the recognition of defetied tax liabilities or assets that arise
{rom differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities that
are measured from the local curtency into doilars using historical exchange rates, and that
tesult from changes in exchange tates or indexing for tax purposes Consequenily, the
abovementioned differences were not 1eflected in the computation of defetred tax assets

and liabilities

Deferred income taxes

At December 31, 2009, the Company had accumulated tax losses amounting to
approximately $219 million (December 31, 2008 - approximately $190 million) and carry
forward capital losses for tax purposes of approximately $61 million {December 31, 2008 -
$ 63 million). These losses are mainly denominated in NIS and linked to the Istaeli CPL
Accumulated business tax losses are available indefinitely to offset future taxable business
income, and carry forward capital losses foi tax purposes ate available indefinitely to offset
future capital gains only Oickit and each of its subsidiaries are assessed on a stand-alone
hasis. As a result, accumulated tax losses in each of the entities can offset future taxable
business income only in the entity in which they were generated Substantially all of the

carryforward amounts have no expiration date.

At December 31, 2009, the Company had a net deferred tax asset (mostly in respect of
carry forward losses and capital losses), in the amount of approximately $56 million
(December 31, 2008 - approximately $67 million). The net deferred tax asset decreased by
approximately $16 million due to the change in Israeli income tax rate. (See note 7b{1)). A
valuation allowance for the entire amount of such asset was set up, and consequently no
deferred tax asset 1s recorded in the balance sheet, since it is more likely than not that the
deferzed tax assets will not be realized in the foreseeable futute.

il




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An [stacli Corporation)

NOTES 1O CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 7 - TAXES ON INCOME (continued):

e.

Uncer tain tax positions:

The Company adopted the new accounting guidance regarding uncertain tax positions as of
January 1, 2007

As aresult of that adoption, as of that date, the Company recognized a {iability for
unrecognized tax benefits in the amount of $167,000 This change was accounted for as a

cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle that is reflected in the financial
statements as a decrease in the balance of retained earnings as of January 1, 2007

Following is a reconciliation of the total amounis of the Company’s unrecognized tax
benefits at the beginning and the end of the years ended on December 31, 2007, 2008 and

2009:

Year ended December 31

2007 2008 2009
Tn thousands
Balance at beginning of yeat F167 $184 $201
Increases in unrecognized tax benefits as 4
result of tax positions taken during a prios
petiod ' 17 17 20
$184 $201 $221

Balance at end of year

A summaty of open tax years by major jitisdiction is presented below:

Jurisdiction: Years:
Israel 2005-2009
United States 2004-2009
Japan 2003-2009

Tax rate reconciliation

In 2009, 2008, and 2007, the main reconciling item from the statutory tax 1ate of the
Company (2009 - 26%, representing a theoietical tax benefit of approximately $7.6
miilion; 2008 —27%, representing a theoretical tax benefit of approximately $8 7 million;
2007 —29%, representing a theoretical tax expense of approximately $3 5 million) to the
effective tax rate (0%) is the set up of a valvation allowance against the deferred tax asset
created in respect of the losses in 2009, 2008 and 2007

-




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An Istaeli Cotporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT :
a. Balances in non-dollar currencies:

1} As follows:
December 31

2008 2009
In thousands
Assets $35,330 $28,596
Liabilities $31,549 $29,603

The U S. dollai amounts above mainly 1epresent balances in Istaeli currency.

2)  Data regarding the rate of exchange and the Israeli CPL;

Year ended December 31
2007 2008 2009

Rate of devaluation (evaluation) of the Israeli
currency against the dollar
Rate of devaluation (evaluation) of the Yen

against the dollar
Rate of increase (decrease) in the Israeli CPI 3 4%

Exchange rate at end of year - § 1= NIS 3.846

(9.0)% (1.1% 0 7%

(58)%  (191)% 2 1Y%
3.8% 39%
NIS 3.802  NIS 3.775

b. Fair value of firancial instruments

The fair value of financial instiuments included in working capital is vsually identical or
close to their catrying value.

As to the fair value of the Company’s securities that are held to matutity and available for

sale, see Note 9a.

As to the fair value of the Company’s convertible subordinated notes, see Note 4

¢.  Concentrations of credit risks

At December 31, 2008 and 2009, substantially all of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents
were held by international and Istaeli banks. Substantially all of the Company’s matketable
securities were held by international and Istaeli banks Such securities represented debentures

1ssued by a number of US and Istaeli corporations and agencies.

Lhe Company evaluates on a curient basis its financia! exposure with any financial
institution or commetejal issuer.

Ihe trade 1eceivable balance at December 31, 2008 and 2009 was derived fiom several
customers {he Company is of the opinion that the exposure to credit risk relating to these
trade receivables is limited




ORCKIT COMIMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Isiaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOITE 8 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued):

d. Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following table presents the company’s assets and liabilities that are measured.at fair
value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2009 and 2008 ($ in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date
Using
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

December 31, 2009

Axsets:
Available for sale securities $10,450 £220 $10,670

Derivatives — presented net of
convertible notes among
long-term Habilities 328 528
December 31, 2008
Assets: .
Available for sale secunities $3,154 $256 $3,410
Detivatives — presented net of
convertible notes among
long-term Iiabilities 5961 $961

Level 1- Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company has the ability to access. Valuation adjustments and block discounts are not applied to
Level 1 instruments Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are readily and regularly
available in an active matket, valuation of these products does not entail a significant degree of
judgment. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 1 inputs include available for sale securities traded in

an active matket.

Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all significant
inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 2 inputs
include available for sale secuiities which dre not traded in an active market The calculation is
based on observable inputs including interest rate curves and publicly available discount rates

Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that ate unobservable and significant to the overall fair value
measurement. Assets utilizing Level 3 inputs include the fair value of the derivatives embeded in the
convettible subordinated notes , which are determined using a valuation model. The valuation mode!
relies on Level 3 inputs including, among other things: (i) estimated future volatility of the
Company's share price; (ii) future risk free interest 1ates; and (iii) expected period in which the notes
will be converted. These estimated fair values are subject to uncertainties that are difficult to predict;
therefore these derivatives have been classified as Level 3 fair value hieraichy. The derivatives' fair
value at December 31, 2008 was recorded as an asset of approximately $961,000 During the year
ended December 31, 2009, the fair value of the detivatives increased by $933,000 of which
approximately $50,000 resulied fiom the repurchase of notes, and at December 31, 2009 were

presented as an asset of approximately $28,000

F-30




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
{An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION:

Balance sheets:
a. Marketable securities:

Consist of:
December 31

2008 2009
In thousands
Carrying amounts

Classified as “held to maturity” 546,666 523,416
Classified as “available for salg” 3,410 10,670
$50,075 $34,086
Heldto-maturity marketable securities
The securities mature over the following yeats:
Mature within 12 months - Classified as
shori-term nvestments $28,076 $7,500
Mature after one year up to 10 yvears (2068 —
11 years) 18,590 15,916
$46,066 $23,416

At December 31, 2008 and 2009 the amottized cost basis, aggregate fair value and
untealized holding gains and losses by major secutity type were as foliows:

Amortized Aggregate Unrealized  Unrealized
cost fair value gains losses

$ in thouwsands

December 31, 2008:

Quoted Israeli
corporate debentutes 7,506 3,651 — (3,855)
Quoted non-Israeli
corporate debentures 24,108 24,150 95 (53)
Non-quoted Israeli
cotporate debentores 15,052 ' 11,540 79 (3,591)
46,666 39,341 174 {7,499)

December 31, 2009:
Quoted Isracli

corporate debentures *7.351 6,441 39 {949)
Quoted non-Israsli
corporate debenturss 3,605 3,673 68 _ —
Non-quoted Israeli
corporate debentures 12,460 12,663 640 {437)
23,416 22,777 747 (1,386)

#  Of which approximately $4 9 million have experienced unrealized losses for more than 12

months
#% Of which approximately $1 0 million have experienced unrealized losses for more than 12 months

s




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Israeli Cotporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION (continued):

The difference between the carrying amounts and the fair value results fiom a decrease in
market value in comparison to the amottization of the premium paid for the securities and
in certain cases a market pricing different fiom the book value of the note In cases whete
other than temporary decline in fair value of a security occurs, an impairment charge would
be recorded The Company considers various factots in determining whether to recognize
an impairment charge, including the length of time and the extent to which the fair value
has been beiow the cost basis, the current financial condition of the investee and the
anticipated tecovery in market value on the time left until maturity.

1

L

Available for sale marketable securities

Ihe securities mature over the following vears:
December 31

2008 2009
_ In thousands
Mature within 12 months $475 $2,777
Mature after one year up to 8 years (2008 — 7
years) 2,935 7,893
$3,410 $10,670

At December 31, 2008 and 2009, the amortized cost basis, aggregate fair value and
unrealized holding gains and losses by major security type were as follows:

Amortized Aggregate Unrealized Uniealized
cost fair value gains losses
In thowsands
December 31, 2008-
Quoted Tsraeli
corporate debentures $6,195 $3,154 $24 $(3,065)
Non-quoted Israeli
corporate debentires 265 256 - )]
$6,460 $3,410 $24 *$(3,074)
December 31, 2009;
Quoted US -
corporate debentures 5,306 5,318 14 {2)
Quoted [sraeli
coiporate debentures 6,261 5,132 146 (1,275)
Nen-quoted Israeli
corporate debentures 211 220 12 {3)
11,778 10,670 172 *#(1,280)

*  Including an other-than-temporary impaitment of $415,0600 which was recorded as financial

expense in the consclidated staternent of operations
**  Including an other-than-temporary impairment of $512,000 which was recorded as financial

expense in the consolidated statement of operations



QRCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID
(An Istacli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 9- SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION (continued):

Untealized losses of $693,000 (December 31, 2008 — $2 6 million) are reported as
accumulated other comprehensive income ({oss) in shareholders’ equity, since the
Company believes that these losses are not other than temporary [n cases that an other than
temporary decline in fair value of a security occurs, based on criteria described in note Ic,
an impairment charge is recorded. The Company considers various factors in determining
whether to recognize an impairment charge, including the length of time and the extent to
which the fair value has been below the cost basis, the cuztent financial condition of the
investee and the Company's intent and ability to hold the investment for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated 1ecovery in market value. During the year ended
December 31, 2009, an impairment charge of $97,000 for certain available for sale
marketable securities was recorded (year ended Decernber 31, 2008 - $415,000)

mnra

December 31
2008 2009

In thousands

b.  Trade receivables -
Open accounts $3,820 5458

The allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2008 and 2009 was zero

December 31
2008 2009

In thousands

¢. Other current asseis:
Goverament of Israel $651 $710
Prepaid expensecs 413 403
Advances to suppliers 2,170 ’
Short-terim severance fund 321
Sundry 83 32
$3,638 $1,145
d. Inventories:
Raw materials $1,040 $542
Finished goods 731 2,160
$1,771 $2,702

In the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2007, the Company wrote-off
inventory in the amount of $365,000 and $960,000, 1espectively.

e. Bank deposit

At December 31, 2008, the Company had a bank deposit in the amount of $1.5 million
denominated in dollars that bears intetest at a rate of 5 1% per year At December 31, 2009,
the Company had bank deposits amounting to $4 million denominated in dollars that bear an

average interest at a rate of 1 4% per year



ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.

(An [staeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOIE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTY INFORMATION (continued):

f.  Accruoed expenses and other payables:

Accrued expenses in respect of deferred income, see g below

Employees and employee institutions
Provision for vacation pay
Short-term accrued severance
Provigsion for warranty *

Accrued royalties

Accrued interest

Advances fiom customers
Executives*®*

Sundry

Precember 31

2008 2009

In thousands

$78 365
2,206 819
1,148 1,026

424 -

894 998
1,764 1,888

464 367

233

132 470

1,186 1,110

$8,296 $6,976

Year ended December 31

2007 2008 2009
In thousands
* The changes in the balance during the year: '

Balance at beginning of year $3.5346 $1,473 $8%4
Payments made under the warranty (396) {402) (344)
Product warranties issued for new sales 297 602 448
Changes in accrual in respect of pre-existing warianties (1,974) (779) -
Balance at end of vear $1,473 $894 $998

*# Two executives, which are shareholders agieed to defer part of the payment of their

compensation This deferral is included in the amounts above

g.  Deferred income:

Revenues to be recognized in future petiods
Applicable product costs
Applicable PCS, wartanty and other costs

December 31
2008 ' 2009

In thousands

$3,233 $1,431
(370) -
(76) (60)
“$2,787 *$1,371

Year ended December 31

* The changes in the balance during the vear:
Balance at beginning of yeat
Recognized during the vear
Deferred income relafing to new sales

Balance at end of vear

2007 2008 2009
In thousands
$£3,196 £1,045 $2,787
(3,138) (1,045) (2,181)
587 2,787 765
81,045 $2,787 31,371




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LT1D.

{An Isiach Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Statements of operations:

h.  Segment information and 1evenues from principal customers

NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION (continued):

The Comparny operates in one operating segment. Disaggregated financial data is
provided below as follows: (1) revenues by geographic area; and (2) revenues from

principal customers:

1) Geographic information

Following is a summary of revenues by geographic atea The Company sells its
& y y & o X i
products mainly to telecommunications catriers. Revenues are atiributed to geographic

areas based on the location of the end users as follows:

Tapan
Germany
Korea
United Stafes
Other

Year ended December 31

2007 2008 2009
In thousands
$9,906 $7,969 $6,015
- 7,615 1,725
824 2916
-y - 1,655
- 848 416
$9.606 $17,256 12,727

Most of the Company’s property and equipment is located in Israel

2) Revenues from principal customers - revenues fiom a single customer that exceeds

10% of total revenues in the relevant year:

Customet A
Customer B
Customer C
Customer I

1.  Cost of revenues:

Matetials consumed, subcontiactors
and other production expenses
Payroll and related expenses
Depreciation
Decrease (increase) in inventories of finished products

Other (in 2007 mainly decrease in warranty provision)

Year ended December 31

2007 2008 2009
In thousands
$9,838 $7,846 85,604
- §7.615 31,725
- $824 52,916
- - 51,635

2

3

Year ended December 31

2007 2008 2009
In thousands

$2,084 $7,417 7,615

1,421 1,654 1,042

592 197 168

1,845 (130) (1,42%9)
(1,116) 468 848
54,826 39,606 $8,244




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.

{An [sraeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

NOYE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMA TION {continued):

j-  Research and development expenses - net:

Total expenses
Less - grants and patticipations, see Note 5a

k. Financial income - net:

Income:
Interest on bank deposits
(zain and interest on marketable securities

Other (including mainly cutrency transaction
gains, nef)

Expenses:

Intersst in respect of convertible subordinated
notes and bank loans

Amottization of convertible subordinated
notes issuance costs and discount

Impairment and foss from the sale of marketable
securities

Other (mainly cutrency transaction
losses and bank charges, net)

1. Litigation settlement income

Year ended December 31

2007 2008 . 2009

In thousands

$22,612 $24,925  $15,33
2,454 2,066 1,722

$20,158 $22,859  $13,608

$081 $119 $72
4,441 4,927 2,901
- 180 28

s

$5,422 35,226 $3,001

$2,229 $3,159  $2,137

912 1366 1,129
880 97
109
3050 5405 3363

$2,172 $(179) ~ $(362)

During 2007, the Company won a claim against a supplier of semiconductor chips
that was acquired by Conexant Systems Inc. The claim was filed with the International
Centte for Dispute Resolution (the international division of the American Arbitration
Association} ("ICDR") The claim was for damages Orckit incurred in the period from
2001 through 2003 in regard to semiconductor chips that were used in Orckit’s legacy
DSL products. The final amount of indemnification was resolved in a settlement
agreement which granted Orckit a payment of $14.2 million plus aftorney fess




ORCKII COMMUNICATIONS LID
{An [sraeli Corporaticn)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION (continued):

m.  Transactions with related parties:

Commencing July 1, 2003, the Company has provided Tikcro, a 1elated party, with
certain administrative services The amount paid by Tikero for such services foreach of

the three years ended December 31, 2009 was $48,000

As to an arrangement with two executives, see also Note 91,

n. Loss per share:

As of December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, options to purchase a total amount of 5,169,234,
5,882,123 and 5,167,509 shares, respectively, wete not taken into account, because of their anti
dilutive effect or because performance based options did not have goals which were probable to

be met

As of December 31, 2007, 2008 and 2009, 2,038,000, 2,038,000 and 1,543,000 shares
respectively, which could be issued in connection with the conversion of convertible subordinated

notes were not taken into account hecause of their anti-dilutive effect.

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Duting December 2009, the Company entered into an agreement to sell an equity
investment, which was recorded at a cost of approximately $1 1 million, for approximately
$3 million. The transaction was completed in January 2010. '

i}
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNIING FIRM

To the shareholders of
ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Orckit Communications Lid (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements
of operations, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2010 The Company’s Board of Directors and management are responsible for these
financial statements Our responsibility is to expiess an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audits

We conducted our andits in accordance with the standairds of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards requite that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whethet the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects  Our audits of the
financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide

a reasonable basis for our opmion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the firancial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2010,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Ametrica.

Tel Aviv, Isragl /s/ Kesselman & Kesselman
March 3, 2011 Certified Public Accountants (Tsr)
A member of
PricewatethouseCoopers
International Limited

Kesselman & Kesselman, Trade Tower, 25 Hamered Street, Tel-Aviv 68125, Istael, P O Box 452 Tel-Aviv 61003
Telephone: +972 -3- 7954555, Fax+972 -3- 7934556, www pwe co il

™




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An Istaeli Coiporation)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(U'S dollars in thousands)

Assets

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents

Marketable securities

Other securities

Bank deposit

Trade receivables

Inventories

Othes current assets

Total current assets
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS:
Marketable securities
Severance pay fund

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net
DEFERRED ISSUANCE COSTS, net
Total assets
Liabilities and equity
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Trade payables
Accrued expenses and other payables
Deferred income
T otal current liabilities
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Accrued severance pay and other
Convertible subordinated notes (note 4)
T otal long-term liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY (note 5)
T otalliabilities
EQUITY (note 6):
Share capital - ordinary shares of no par value

(authorized: December 31, 2009 — 56,000,000 shares; December 31, 2010 —

75,000,000; issued: December 31, 2009 - 19,212,601 shares;

December 31, 2010 - 25,128,358 shares; outstanding: December 31, 20009 -

16,567,762 shares; December 31, 2010 — 22,483,519 shares), additional
paid in capital and warrants
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Treasury shares, at cost (2,644,839 ordinary shares)
Total equity
T otal liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

E-4

December 31

2009 2010
$8.100 $7.610
18.170 11,585

1,148 ]
4.000 ]
458 6.624
2,702 3183
1,145 3.197
35,732 32,199
15,916 16,351
3,204 3,611
19210 19,962
1103 923
312 173
$56,357 $53,257
$4.454 $3,778
6.976 6.910
1.371 1,933
12.801 12,621
4,096 4,446
21,996 24,938
26,002 20384
38.803 42,005
343418 362,017
(319.714)  (345.065)
(596) (56)
(5.644)  (5,644)
17,464 11252
$56,357  $53.257

[UNLLE




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Isracli Corpotation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(U S. dotlars in thousands, except per share data)

REVENUES
COST OF REVENUES
GROSS PROFIT
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES - net
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES
OPERATING LOSS
FINANCIAL EXPENSES - net
GAIN FROM EARLY EXTINGUISHMENI OF NOTES
INCOME (EXPENSES) FROM DEVALUATION OF CONVERSION
FEATURE EMBEDDED IN CONVERTIBLE NOTES (note 4)

OTHER INCOME (note 9)
NET LOSS

L.OSS PER SHARE (“EPS™) (note 5n, 1n):
Basic and Diluted

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES
USED IN COMPUTATION OF EPS (in thousands):

Basic and Diluted

Year ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
$17,256 $12,727 $14,631
(9,606) (8,244) (9,340)
7,650 4,483 5,291

(22,859)  (13,608)  (14,09%)

(19,164)  (15677) _ (16,498)

(34373)  (24,802)  (25,305)

(179) (362) (1,642)

- 2,985 -

2,265 (883) (28)

- - 1,624
$(32,287)  $(23,062)  $(25.351)
$(1.97) $(1.40) $(1.33)

16,386 16,483 19,024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
{An Istaeli Cotporation)
CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(U5 dollars in thousands)
Year ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss for the year £(52,287) $(23,062)  $(25351)
Adjustnients to reconcile net [oss to net cash
used in opetating activities:
Depieciation and amortization:
Property and equipment 590 740 737 B
Deferred issuance costs 185 150 139 =
Accrued interest, premium amortization and currency differences on
marketable securities (2,117) (849 (1,515)
Impairment of marketable securities 415 97 447
Increase (decrease) in accrued severance pay {186) (308) 330
Compensation 1elated to employee stock option grants, net 3,511 1,691 1,572
Revaluation {devaluation) of conversion feature embedded in convertible notes (2,265) 883 28
Adjustments in the value of convertible notes 2,520 1,324 2,914

Gain fiom eatly extinguishment of convertible subordinated notes - (2,985) -
. (1,624)

Gain from the sale of an equity investment )
Increase in other long-term liabilities 17 20 20
Changes in operating assets and labilities: :

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables _ (3,771) 3,362 (6,166)

Decrease (increase) in other current assets {1,685) 2,172 (2,052)
Decrease in trade payables, accrued expenses

and other payables {6) (934) (742)
Increase (decrease) in deferred income 1,742 (1,416) 562
Increase in inventories {d424) (831) (481)

(33,361)  (20,046)  (31,182)

Net cash used inl operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVIIIES:
(984) (465) (557)

Purchase of property and equipment
Change in funds in respect of accrued severance pay, net 116 44 (317
Proceeds ffom (investment in) equity investmenis (14) "y 2,772
Banl deposits, net - (2,500 4,000
Maturity of matketable secutities held to maturity 35,537 29,733 9,837
Proceeds from marketable secuzities available for sale 836 481 7,572
Purchase of markétable securities held to maturity (13,001) (6,163)
Purchase of marketable securities available for sale {840) (5,270} (9,651)
Net cash provided by investing activities 21,650 15,860 13,656
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Exercise of options granted to employees 160 35 33
-- 16,992

Proceeds from issuance of share capital and warrants ) B

Early extinguishment of convertible subordinated notes - (2,983)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 160 (2,950) 17,027
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (11,551) (7,136) - {499)
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,796 15,245 8,109
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

-

END OF YEAR 515,245 $8,109 $7,610
SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW

INFORMATIION — CASH PAID DURING THE YEAR FOR: . -

Interest paid $2,011 31,345 $1,509

Advances paid to income tax autherities 335 385 $43

Supplementary information on financing activities not involving cash flows:

- Issuance of 36,414 shares in the value of $100,000 . See also note 61
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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ORCIKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
{An Israeli Corpolation)

NOTES 1O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

i

a. General:

D

2)

Nature of operations

Orckit Communications Ltd (“Orckit™) is an Israeli corporation Orckit and its
subsidiaries, mainly Orckit-Corntigent (“Corzigent”) (together - “the Company™) ate
engaged in the design, development, manufacture and marketing of advauced telecom
equipment to telecommunication setvice pioviders in active metiopolitan areas.The
Company's products are transport telecommunication equipment targeting high capacity

packetized metropolitan networlks

For segment information see note 9h.

The Company currently procutes a numbes of major components of its products from

single soutce suppliers.

Functional currency

The currency of the primary economic envirorment in which the operations of the

Company are conducted is the U.S dollar (“doltar” or “§”), since most purchases of
matetials and components are made in dollars and most of its assets are denominated in

dollats

Transactions and balances originally denominated in dollats are presented in their original
amounts Balances in non-doliar curtencies are translated into dollars using historical and
current exchange 1ates for non-monetary and monetary balances, respectively. For non-
dollar transactions reflected in the statements of operations, the exchange rafes at
transaction dates are used. Depreciation and amoitization and changes in inventories
dérived from non-monetary items are based on historical exchange rates. The resulting
currency transaction gains ot losses are cartied to financial income or expenses, as

appropriate.

Accounting principles

The consclidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP") in the United States.

58
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ORCKII COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An Israeli Corpotation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNIING POLICIES (continued):
4y Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates ot the financial
statements and the reported amounts of 1evenues and expenses during the reported years

Actual results could differ from those estimates.

b.  Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Orckit and its
subsidiaries only owned Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

c. Marketable securities:

Debt securities that the Company plans to hold to matutity, and based on its assessment has
the ability to hold to maturity, are classified as “held to maturity” and are recorded at
amortized cost. The premium or discount is amortized over the period to maturity and
included in financial income or expenses. On Decembet 31, 2010, the Company reclassified
its entire portion of investment portfolio classified at that date as held-to-maturity to
available-for-sale because based on management evaluation, it might not hold these securities
to maturity but rather use a portion of the funds

Other debt securities are classified as available-for-sale These securities are reported at fair
value, with unrealized gains and losses 1eported as a separate component of comprehensive
income (loss) in shareholders’ equity When securities do not have an active market, fair
value is determined using a valuation model Unrealized losses that are considered fo be
other-than-temporary are charged to income as an impairment charge Realized gains and
losses on sales of secuzities, as well as premivm or discount amortization, are included in the
consolidated statement of operations as financial income or expenses. I he Company does not
hold any securities for trading purposes.

In April 2009, the FASB issued new accounting guidance for recognition and presentation of
other-than-temporary impairments. This guidance amends the other-than-temporary
impairment guidance for debt securities. Pursuant to this guidance, an other-than-temporary
impairment is now triggered when there is intent to sell the security, it is more likely than not
that the security will be required to be sold before recovery of its amortized cost basis, or the
entity does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost basis of the security. If the debt
security’s matket value is below amortized cost and the Company either intends to sell the
secutity or it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the security
before recovery of its amortized cost basis, the Company records an other-than-temporary
impaitment chatge to financial expenses for the entire amount of the impairment. For the
remaining debt securities, if an other-than-tempozary impairment exists, the Company
sepatates the other-than-temporary impairment into the credit loss portion and the non-credit
loss portion. The credit loss portion is the difference between the amortized cost of the '
security and the Company’s best estimate of the present value of the cash flows expected to
be collected from the debt security. The non-credit loss portion is the residual amount of the
other-than-temporary impairment The credit loss portion is recorded as a charge to financial
expenses, and the non-credit loss portion is recorded as a separate component of other
comprehensive income (loss) Prior to the effective date of this gnidance, the entire other-
than-temporary impairment chatge was recognized in earnings for all debt securities The

Company adopted this gnidance in 2009.

F-9
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID
(An Isiaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

d. Inventories

[nventories, ate valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is deter mined as follows:

Rasv matetials and supplies - on moving average basis
Finished products - on basis of production costs:
Raw matérials and supplies - on moving avetage basis.
Labor and preduction cost - on average basis.

Cost of finished products that are manufactured completely by subcontractors ate
determined based o the specific cost of each product The Company writes down
product inventory based on forecasted demand and technological obsolescence

e, Property and equipment:
1) These assets are stated at cost.

2)  The assets are depreciated by the straight-line method on the basis of their estimated

useful life, as follows:
Years

3
10

Computers, software and equipment
Office furniture and equipment

Leasehold improvements are amortized by the straight-line method, over the term of the lease,
o1 over the estimated useful }ife of the improvements - whichever is shorter.

i Impairment of properiy and equipment

Long-lived assets, held and used by the Company aie reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the caurying amount of the assets may not be
recoverable. If the sum of the expected future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest
chatges) of long-lived assets is less than the carrying amount of such assets, an impairment
loss would be recognized, and the assets would be written down to their estimated fair values.

g.  Deferred issuance costs

Issuance costs in the original amount of $917,000 in connection with the convettible
subordinated notes were deferred and ate amortized over the period fiom issuance date to
March 2012. Upon early tepurchase of such notes, applicable issnance costs were offset

against the gain recorded, proportionately to the amounts of notes repurchased (see note 4).
h.  Treasmry shares

Ordinary shares purchased by the Company are presented as a reduction of shat eholders’
equity, at their cost to the Company




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTID.
(An Isiaelt Cotporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED TINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

i Revenue recognition

Revenues from sales of products are recognized when delivery occurs and title passes to the
customet, provided that appropriate signed documentation of an arrangement exists, the fee is

fixed or deferminabie and collectability is reasonably assuted.

Software revenue recognition guidance aiso applies to non-softwate deliverables, such as
computer hardware, if the software is essential to the functionality of the noa-softwate
deliverables, as is the case with the Company’s delivetables. Accordingly, revenues from
sales of software products are recognized when, in addition to the critetia mentioned above,
vendor-specific objective evidence ("VSOE”) of fair value for undelivered elements exists.
VSOE is typically based on the price charged when an eiement is sold separately or, if an
element is not sold separately, on the price established by authotized management, if it is
probable that the price, once established, will not be changed when this element is
commercially scld.

The Company grants to customers post-contract hardware and software support services
(“PCS”) in connection with its sales. VSOE of the fait value of PCS was established based on
Company's practice with its customers Therefore, revenues from the sale of products were
recognized upon delivery (when the criteria mentioned above are met), and the fair valus of
PCS is deferred and recognized over the term of the PCS.

In 2008, the Company granted in one of its sales agieements a right to purchase, at a discount,
upgrades to the systems sold during a limited period. The applicable portion of the discount
ascribed to a portion of the sales, with respect to which the Company assessed an upgrade
might be performed, was deferred The defarred revenues are recognized when the Company
estimates that the customer will not exercise the purchase right it has received, or when the
tight expires. In 2009, upon lapse of that limited period, the applicable defetzed revenues

wete recognized.
The Company does not, in the normal course of business, provide a right of retuin fo its

customers

See also note 1t(1)(2) regaiding a change in accounting guidance with respect to multiple
deliverable revenue arrangements and software revenue arrangements

j. Provision for warranty

The Company grants warranty servicing for products sold The Company expenses such
warranty costs at the time revenues fiom the related sales are recognized. {Ses also Note 11,
above.) The annual provision is calculated as a percentage of sales, based on histotical

experience.




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Isiaeti Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

k. Uncertainty in income taxes

The Company implements accounting guidance for accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes. Accordingly, a two-step approach to recognizing and measu:ing uncertain tax
positions is appiied. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by
determining if the weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not that
the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation
processes, if any 1he second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is
more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company's policy s to
include interest related to untecognized tax benefits within financial expenses and penalties

within operating loss.

. Research and development expenses

Research and development expenses, which consist mainly of labor costs, are chazged to
income as incurred. Government grants received for development of projects are recognized

as a reduction of these expenses
Nonrefundable advance payments for goods or services that will be used or rendered for

future research and development activities are deferred and amortized over the period that the
goods are delivered or the related services are performed, subject to an assessment of

tecovetability.

m. Cash equivalents
Ihe Company considers all highly liquid investments, which include short-term bank deposits
(up to three months from date of deposit) that are not restricted as to withdrawal or use, to be

cash equivalents

n. Loss per share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during each yeat, net of treasury shartes,

The convertibie subordinated notes, outstanding stock options and warrants, where
applicable, have been excluded from the calculation of the diluted EPS for each of the three
years ended December 31, 2010 due to their anti-dilutive effect See also Note 9m.

0. Comprehensive loss

The Company’s comprehensive loss consists of its net loss and, in the years ended December
31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, of unrealized gains and losses derived from marketable securities

classified as available for sale (See aiso Note 1c above).

E-12
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTID.
(An [siaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNIING POLICIES {(continued):

p.

Stock based compensation

Awards classified as equity awaids are accounted for using the grant-date fair value method.
The fair value of shate-based payment transactions is recognized as expense over the
requisite service period, net of estimated forfeitures. The Company estimated forfeitures

based on historical experience and anticipated future conditions

The Company elected to recognize compensation cost for an award with only service
conditions that has a graded vesting schedule using the straight-line method over the
requisite service period for the entire award. Awards that vest upon performance conditions
are 1ecognized using the accelerated method based on the multiple-option award approach.

Deterred income taxes

Deferzed taxes ate determined utilizing the asset and liability method, based on the estimated
future tax effect differences between the financial accounting and tax bases of assets and
[iabilities under the applicable tax laws. Valuation allowances are included in respect of
deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that no such assets will be realized. See

Note 7d.

Taxes which would apply in the event of disposal of investments in non-Isracli subsidiaties
have not been taken into account in computing deferred taxes, as it is the Company’s policy

to hold these investments, and not to realize them

Shipping and handling fees and costs

Shipping and handling costs related to revenues are classified as a component of cost of

revenues.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value measurements. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability (i ¢, the “exit piice”) in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date.

In determining fair value, the Company uses various valuation approaches, including
market, income and/or cost approaches Accounting gunidance establishes a hierarchy for
inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs and
minimizes the use of unobsetvable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be
used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from sources independent of the
Company Unocbsetvable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s assumptions about
the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the
best information available in the circumstances. The hierarchy is divided into three levels
based on the reliability of inputs. For further disclosure, see Note 8d

| INEER]




ORCKIT COMINUNICATIONS L1ID.

{An istaeli Cotporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued):

t.  Recently Issued Accounting Guidance

0

2)

Multiple Deiiverable Revenue Arrangements

[n October 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standard Update No 2009-13, Revenue
Recognition (Topic 605} — Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements ("ASU 2009-
13"y ASU 2009-13 provides guidance on whether multiple deliverables in a revenue
arrangement exists, how the arrangement should be separated, and the consideration
allocated Pursvant to ASU 2009-13, when vendor specific objective evidence ("VSOE")
or third party evidence ("IPE") for deliverables in an arrangement cannot be determined,
a best estimate of the selling price is required to sepatate deliverables and allocate
arrangement consideration, generally, using the relative selling price method. In addition,
the residual method of allocating antangement consideration is no longer permitted.

ASU 2009-13 is effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered info or

materially modified starting January 1, 2011
The Company enters into various types of multiple-element arrangements and, 1o many

cases, uses the residual method to allocate arrangement consideration The elimination of
the residual method and the requirement for the use of the relative selling price method
will result in the Company allocating any discount over ail of the deliverables rather than
recognizing the entire discount up front with the delivered items. This change is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements based on the
preliminary analysis performed to date. The Company is currently developing a process
for detenmining its best estimate of selling price for deliverables m which neither VSOE

nor TPE is available.

Soltware revenue arrangements

In October 2009, the FASB issued an update to Topic 985-605 ASU 2009-14, amends
the scope of the software revenue guidance in Topic 985-605 to exclude, inter alia, non-
software components of tangible products and software components of tangible products
when the software components and non-software components of the tangible product
function together to deliver the tangible product’s essential functionality. ASU 2009-14 is
effective prospectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified in
fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted if the
company elects to adopt ASU 2009-13 concurrently. The Company is currently
evaluating the potential impact of ASU 2009-14 on the consolidated financial statements.

s




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
{An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE I - SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICYES (continued):

The adoption of ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 will allow the Company to meet
separation criteria requited for multiple element atrangements where it could not
previously establish a fair value for one or more of the relevant deliverables Previously,
when the Company could not establish fair value for certain technical support

agleements,
all revenue was deferted These 1evenues were then recognized over the appropriate

petiod, generally coinciding with an explicit or implied support period, or in some cases
deferred until all elements of the aitangement had been delivered. Under ASU 2009-13,
overall consideration is allocated among the separate units of accounting based on their
relative fait value. This will result in the ability to recognize each unit of accounting upon
delivery. Revenue for hardware, which includes software that is considered more than
incidental, will be recognized upon delivery whereas technical support services will be

recognized over the applicable service period.

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Compesition of assets, grouped by major classification, is as follows:

December 31
2009 2010
In thousands

Cost:

Computers, software and equipment $5,332 $5,858
Office furniture and equipment 146 174
Leasehold improvements 226 229
$5,704 $6,261

Less - accumulated depreciation and amortization 4,601 5,338
$i,103 $923

Depreciation and amottization expenses totaled $990,000, $740,000 and $737,000 in the years
ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 respectively

NOTE 3 - SEVERANCE PAY:

Israeli fabor laws and agreements require payment of severance pay upon dismissal of an
employee or upon termination of employment in certain other circumstances 1he
Company's severance pay liability to its employees, mainly based upon length of service and
the latest monthiy salaty (one month’s salary for each year worked), is reflected by a balance
sheet acerual under “accrued severance pay and other” The Company 1ecords the liability as
if' it were payable at each balance sheet date on an undiscounted basis

a.

T
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
{An Israeli Coipoiation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

NOTE 3 - SEVERANCE PAY (continued):

The liability is partly funded by puirchase of insurance policies o1 pension funds and by
deposit of funds in dedicated deposits. The amounts funded ate included in the balance sheet
under “~Severance pay fund” The policies ate the Company’s assets and under labot
agreements, subject to certain limitations, they may be transfetied to the owneiship of the
beneficiaty employees The amounts funded as of December 31, 2009 and 2010 are

approximately $3,294,000 and 3,611,000, respectively.

According to substantially all of the Company’s cutrent employment agreements, the
Company makes regular deposits with insutance companies in otdet to secure employees’
rights upon retirement. Thus, in accordance with these agreements, the Company is fully
relieved fiom any severance pay liability The liability accrued in respect of these employees
and the amounts funded, as of the agreement date, are not reflected in the balance sheets,
since the amounts funded are not undet the control and management of the Company.

The Company accounts for severance pay liability as conteraplated by accounting guidance
with respect to vested benefit obligations for defined benefit pension plans and, accordingly,
records the obligation on an undiscounted basis as if it were payable at each balance sheet

date.

The amounts of pension and severance pay expense were $1.4 million $1 1 million and §1.3
million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively, of which $1.3
million, $900,000 and $1 1 million in the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010,
respectively, were in respect of the insutance policies that were expensed but not reflected in

the balance sheet as described above

The Company expects to contribute approximately $1.3 mnillion in 2011 to insurance
companies and pension funds, in respect of its severance pay liabilities expected to be
incurred relating to 2011 operations.

The Company does not expect to pay material fiture benefits to its employees upon their
normat retirement age in the years 2011 through 2020 since there are no material obligations
not covered by on-going severance deposits

Ihe statement in item d above does not include amounts that might be paid to employees who
will cease working for the Company before their normal retirement age.

F-16
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS L1D
{An {staelit Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 - CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES

On March 27, 2007, Orckit issued approximately $25 0 million principal amount of convertible
subordinated notes (the “Notes”) in a private placemsnt The Notes were issued at their par value of
NIS 107 million. The Notes ate due in 2017, linked to the Israeli consumer price index (“CPI”) and
pay interest, in NIS, semi-annually at the rate per annum of 6%, linked to the Istaeli CPI. Holders of
the Notes have the right to request repayment of the principal amount in March 2012 [he Notes ate
convertible at the election of the holders, at any time, into ordinary shares of Orckit af the initial
conversion price of NIS 63 (equivalent to $15 00 per shate on issuance date) subject to adjustment for
customary events Orckit has the right to force conversion of the Notes if the market price of its
ordinary shares exceeds $30 00 per share on 20 frading days within any consecutive 30 trading day
peticd, subject to adjustment for customary events Orckit listed the Notes on the Tel Aviv Stock
Exchange Based on the conversion rate applicable at December 31, 2010, taking into account the buy
back of a portion the Notes, see below, the Notes are convertible into 1,285,714 ordinary shares of the

Company

Since the conversion price of the Notes is denominated in NIS, and the Company’s functional
currency is the U S dollar, this conversion option is deemed to be an embedded derivative that should
be measured and accounted for separately Accordingly, the conversion option is marked to market
each repotting period with the difference recotded as financial income or expense

The Company measured the fair value of the conversion feature on the issuance date at approximately
$4 8 million Since approximately $25 million was raised, the remaining $20 million was allocated to
the Notes, theteby creating a discount and increasing the effective interest rate. The discount is
amortized over the period from issuance date to March 2012, the earliest possible repayment date. The
amortized balance of the discount at December 31, 2010 was $1 1 million (December 31, 2009 ~ $2.3
million). The amortized balance of the discount at December 31, 2009 and 2010 is net of a relative
portion of the amount due to the repurchase of a portion of the Notes, see below.

At December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the fair value of the conversion feattire was
$1,000 and $28,000 respectively

The fair value of the Notes at December 31, 2010 after the repurchase, as fzaded on the Tel Aviv
Stock Exchange, was approximately $22 9 million (Decembe: 31, 2009 - $14 4 million). See also

Note 8d.
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Istaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 53 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY:

a.  Royalty commitment

The Company is committed to pay royalties to the Government of [siael on proceeds from
sales of products whose reseaich and development was funded, in part, by Government
grants At the time the grants wete received, successful development of the related projects

was not assured.

In the case of failute of a project that was pattly financed by rovalty-bearing Government
participations, the Company is not obligated to pay any royalties to the Government

The royalty rate, based on the sales of products resulting from fanded research and
development projects, was fixed at 3% during the first three years and 3 5-4 5% thereafter
Royalties are paid biannually and are payable up to 100% of the amount of such grants, with
the addition of annual interest based on LIBOR Royalty expenses are classified as part of

cost of tevenues

In the event that any of the manufacturing rights or technology is transferred out of Tsrael,
subject to the approval of the Government of Tsrael, the Company would be required to pay
royalties at a higher rate and an increased aggregate payback amount in the range of 120% to
300% of the grants received, based on the applicable project The total aggregate contingent
liability of the Company in respect of royalties to the Government of Israel at December 31,
2010 was approximatety $14 2 million (excluding interest accrued),

Rovalty expenses totaled $690,000, $509,000 and $366,000, in the years ended December
31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively, and ate included in the statements of opetations in

cost of revenues.

b. Lease commitments

Ihe Company has entered into sevetal operating lease agreements with respect to its offices
The main agreement is for the ptemises it uses in Istael The Company has an option to

terminate this lease agreement on a six-month s advance notice

The projected annual rental payments for 2011 and for subsequent years, at rates and for
leases in effect for 2010 at December 31, 2010, ate approximately $1.1 million.

Lease expenses totaled $1,177,000, $1,149,000 and $1,161,000 in the years ended Decembe:
31,2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

c.  Contingent liability

In 2006, the Company became subject to litigation regarding the alleged non-fulfillment ot
contract obligations The Company has provided fot that claim.
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ORCKIT COMMNMUNICATIONS L'ID
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Share capital:

Orckit's ordinary shares are traded in the United States on the Nasdaq Global Mariket,
under the symbol "ORCT" and on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange-in Istael.

)

2y Treasury shares

The Company holds 2,644,839 ordinaty shares of Orckit acquired at a cost of
$5,644,000 For as long as such ordinary shares are owned by the Company, they have
no rights and, accordingly, are neither eligible to participate in ot receive any future
dividends which may be paid to shareholders of Orckit not are they entitled to
participate in, be voted at, or be counted as part of the quorum for, any meeting of

shareholders of Orclit

3)  Exetcise of options

Under the Employee Share Option Plan (see Note 6b below), options to purchase
60,763, 164,176 and 263,891 ordinary shares were exercised in the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

4)  Asto the issuance of share capital and warrants see f below.

Employee Share Option Plan

The Company 1ecorded compensation costs of $3,511,000, $1,691,000 and $1,572,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively

In February 1994, Orckit's Board of Ditectots approved an Employee Share Option Plan (the
"Plan"). Ihe total aggregate number of shares authorized for which options could be granted
undet the Plan (as amended in 2003), was 13,511,088 at December 31, 2010, of which
options to purchase 7,023,677 shares have been exercised, options to purchase 5,310,025
shares have been granted and are outstanding and options to purchase 1,177,386 shates are
avallable for future grant Option awards are granted with an exercise price as detetmined
by the Company Option awards generally vest between three to six years and generally have
a contractual term from seven to ten years The Company's policy is to issue new shares to

satisfy share option exercises

As aresult of an amendment to Section 102 of the Tax Ordinance as part of the 2003 Israeli
tax reform, and pursuant to an election made by the Company thereunder, gains derived by
employees (which ferm includes directors) in Istael arising fiom the shares acquired pursnant
to the exercise of options granted to them through a trustee under Section 102 of the Tax
Ordinance after January 1, 2003, will generally be subject to a flat capital gains tax 1ate of
25%, it held by the trustee for the minimum period 1equired by law. In accordance with the
track chosen by the Company, the Company is not allowed to claim, as an expense for tax
purposes, the amounts credited to employees as a benefit, including amounts recorded as
salary benefits in the company’s accounts, in respect of options granted to employees under
the plan - with the exception of the wotk-income benefit component, if any, determined on

the grant date
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ORCKIT COMBIUNICATIONS LID.
(An Istaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY (continued):

The Company giants two types of awards, (a) non-perfotmance options, which are options
with a vesting petiod, but no additional performance criteria, and (b) performance goals
options, which are contingent upon meeting specified performance goals. Certain
petformance goals options are, in addition to thelr performance goals, subject to a vesting
period which commences upon meeting the performance goals

Nown performance options

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. Expected volatifities are based on histozical volatility of the
Company’s share ptice (eliminating nontecurring one-time events) and other factors The
Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and employee termination model
The expected tetm of options granted represents the period of time that options granted are
expected to be outstanding based on the historical behavior of employees

The risk-fiee rate for periods within the expected life of the option is based on the U S.
Treasury yield curve in effect af the time of grant. The following assumptions were made in
the computation of the fair value of each option award using the Black-Scholes optioa-

pricing model

Year ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 61 % 70 % 71 %
Risk-free interest rate 2.6% 1.2% 1.3%
Expected life - in years 2.7 2.7 3.2
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An Israel: Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued):

A summary of option activity for non-peiformance options (options with a vesting petiod,
but no additional performance criteria) under the Plan as of December 31, 2010, and

changes during the year then ended is presented befow:

Weighted
Weighted average Aggregate
average 1emaining intrinsic
Number of exercise price contractual value (in
Options options (per option) term thousands)
Qutstanding at Tanuary 1, 2010 4,033,650 943
Granted 935,000 $320
Exercised (263,891) 013
Forfeited (308,429} §5.54
Expired {71,633
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 4,234,698 £9 .06 3.87 %605
296 $581

Exercisable at December 31, 2010 o 2,809,984 $1169

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of this type of option gianted during the years
2008, 2009 and 2010 was $2.11, $0 89 and $0.85, 1espectively. The total intrinsic value of
options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, was $295,000,

$354,000 and $829,000, respectively

As of December 31, 2010, there was $1 6 million of fotal unrecognized compensation cost
telated to these nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Plan
That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2 2 years

- The Company modified the expiration date of options in 2010 for 76 empioyees. The total
expense resulting from the medifications was $182,000

Performance based options

These awards include options that are contingent upon meeting specified performance goals
The fair value of these options was estimated on the date of grant using the same option
valuation model used for non-performance options. When the Company assumes that
performance goals will not be achieved, no compensation cost has been recorded with
respect theteto. Upon teaching the point in time when the Company believes that the
performance goals will be achieved, the Company will record a catch-up of share based
compensation expenses for all vesting periods completed through that date.
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ORCKIT COMMUMICATIONS LTD
(An Isiaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued):

The fair value of each option awatd is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes

option-pricing model Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the

Company’s share price (eliminating noniecurring one-time events) and other factors Ihe
Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and employee termination within
the valuation model The expected teim of options granted represents the period of time that
options granted are expected to be outstanding based on historical behavior of employees

The risk-fiee rate for periods within the expected life of the option is based on the U'S

Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant

The following assumptions were made in the computation of the fair value of each of these
option awards using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model Tn 2009 and 2010, there were

no grants of petfoimance based options

Year ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
Expected dividend yield 0% N/A N/A
Expected volatility 60 % N/A N/A
Risk-free interest rate 3.4% N/A N/A
Expected life - in years ' 6.3 . N/A N/A

A summary of performance based option activity under the Plan as of December 31, 2010,

and changes during the year then ended is presented below:

Weighted
Weighted average Aggregate
average remaining intrinsie
Number of  exercise price contractual value (in
Options options {per option) term thousands)
Qutstanding at January 1, 2010 1,133,858 $6.83
Forfeited (58,532) 58 32
Qutstanding al December 31, 2010 1,073,326 $6.18 5.49 121
121

Exercisable at December 31, 2010

325,326 $6.17 3.73

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of this type of option granted during 2008 was

3176

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during each of the three vears ended

December 31 2008, 2009 and 2010, was $0
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An Istaeli Corperation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued):

As of December 31, 2010, there was $63,000 of total unrecogunized compensation cost
related to these nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Plan
That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 0 3 yeats

When the Company assumes that performance goals will not be achieved, these options ate
included with a fair value of $0 and no compensation cost is recorded with respect thereto

The Company medified the exsrcise price of options in 2008 and 2010 Information
regarding the modified exercise ptice of the options appears in the table below:

Year ended December 31

2008 2009 ‘ 2010
Number of employees affected 149 0 1
Total expenses resulting from modification ~_$520,000 0 $14,000

¢.  Grant of stock and option plans of subsidiaries

In 2001, the Board of Dizectors of Orckit’s major subsidiary, Corrigent, approved an
employee share option plan (the “Corrigent Subsidiay Plan™) Corrigent granted, and
teserved for grant, shares and options under its Plan, as applicable, to its employees, officers
and directors and fo personnel of Orckit, including employees, officers and directors of
Orckit As determined by the respective stock option committee, the exercise price of
options granted was zero, which represented the value of the shares on the grant date. The
vesting petiod of options granted was up to four years from the date of grant.

At the grant date, the intrinsic value and the weighted fair value of options granted by
Cortigent was $0. Accordingly, no compensation expense in 1espect of the options granted
was recorded. At the annual general meeting of shareholders held on June 23, 2005, Orckit's
shareholders approved a plan for potential exchanges of Corrigent's options for options for
up to 10% of the outstanding Ordinary Shares of Orckit. Under the terms of the plan, all the
outstanding stock options of Corrigent were exchangeable for options to purchase shares of
Otekit. Under the terms of the plan, only vested stock options of Corrigent were offered to
be exchanged commencing January 1, 2006 On July (8, 2005, Orckit’s option committee
approved an exchange, effective as of January 1, 2006, of a certain amount of Corrigent’s
options for approximately 500,000 O:ckit options. The exchange was accounted for
according to accounting guidance, and since the exchange was based on the ratio between
the fair market value of Corrigent and Orckit, no additional compensation expense was

1ecognized.

Tn 2007 and 2008, following approvals by Otckit’s audit committee and board of directors,
exchanges of additional amounts of Cotrigent’s options for Ozckit options occurred The
exchange included all Corrigent’s outstanding options. The exchange was accounted for
according to accounting guidance A portion of the exchange was not based on the ratio
between the fair market value of Corrigent and Orckit. As a resuit, in 2008, additional
compensation expense was recognized in the amount of §1 8 million




ORCEKITI COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Israeli Cotporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS? EQUITY (continued):

d.

Dividends

In the event cash dividends are declaied by the Company, such dividends will be declared

and paid in Israeli cunrency

Shareholder Bonus Rights Plan

On November 21, 2001, Orckit’s Board of Directors adopted 2 Shareholder Bonus Rights
Plan (the “Rigits Plan™) pursuant to which share purchase bonus rights (the “Rights”) were
distributed on December 6, 2001, at the rate of one Right for each of Orckit’s ordinaty
shares held by shareholders of record as of the close of business on that dats.

Ihe Rights Plan is intended to help ensure that all of the Company’s shateholdess are able
to realize the long-term value of theit investment in the Company in the event of a potential
takeover which does not reflect the full value of the Company and is otherwise not in the
best interests of the Company and its sharcholders The Rights Plan is also intended to

deter unfalr or coetcive takeover tactics

Lhe Rights will be exercisable and transferable apart from Orckit’s o dinary shazes only if
a person oz group becomes an “Acquiring Person” by acquiring beneficial ownership of
15% o1 more of Orckit’s ordinary shates, subject to certain exceptions set forth in the
Rights Pian, or commences a tender o1 exchange offer upon consummation of which such
person or group would become an Acquiring Person Subject to certain conditions
described in the Rights Plan, once the Rights become exercisable, the holders of Rights,
other than the Acquiting Person, wiil be entitled to purchase ordinary shares at a discount

Issnance of share capital and warrants

1) OnApril 1, 2010 the Company closed & “registered direct” public offeting with
investors for the sale of 2,810,000 ordinary shares and warrants to purchase 702,500
ordinary shares, as well as contingent warrants The primary warrants are exercisable
until April I, 2015, have an exercise price of $5 66 per share and will not be listed on
any securities exchange
It the closing price of Orckit’s ordinary shares for any 20 trading day petiod within a 30
trading day petiod following April 1, 2011, the one year anniversary of the closing, is
equal to or greater than $11.32 per share, then Orckit may, in its sole discretion, may
subject to certain terms stipulated in the warrant agreement, elect to requize the exercise
of'all of the then unexercised primary warrants. In the event that the Company requires
the exercise of the primary warrants, subject fo certain conditions, the contingsnt

warrants to purchase an equal number of ordinary shares would become exercisable until
April 1, 2015 at a price of $11 32 per share The contingent warrants will not be listed

on any secutities exchange
I'he ordinary shares, wairants and contingent warrants were sold in units consisting of
one ordinaty share, 025 ptimary wanants to purchase one ordinary share, and 025

contingent watrants (which become effective only upon a forced exercise of the primary
watrants, as described above) to purchase one ordinary share, at a price of $3 78 per

unit

1
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ORCEKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.

(An Israeli Cotpotation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coatinued)

NOTE 6 - SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY (continued):

2)

3)

The gross proceeds of the offering were approximately $10.6 million and net proceeds,
after deducting the placement agent's fee and offering expenses were approximately §9 7

million

The Company’s two foundeis who are executive officers and directors of the Company
were among the investors in the offering and purchased a total of 175,000 units. No
placement fee was paid in the connection with the sale to the founders

On December 3, 2010, the Company closed a public offering of 3,045,452 ordinary
shates and wariants to purchase 1,827,271 ordinary shares. The ordinary shares and
watrants wete offered in units each consisting of one ordinary share and a watrant to
purchase 0 60 of an ordinary share, at a total price of $2.75 per unit The warrants are
exercisable until December 3, 2015, have an exercise prlce of $3.50 per share and will

not be listed on any securities exchange.

2,136,362 units in the offering were purchased by underwriters pursuant to an
underwiiting agreement. An additional 669,090 units in the offering were purchased by
a fund affiliated with one of Orckit’s directors pursuant to a subscription agreements on
terms and conditions that are substantially the same as those provided in the

underwriting agreement.

In addition, the Company’s two founders, who are executive officers and directors, have
agreed to purchase a total of 240,000 units, subject to sharcholder approval, at a
shareholders’ meeting to be held in March 2011 No underwriting discounts applies to

the sales to affiliates.

The gross proceeds of the offering, excluding the expected proceeds from the sale to the
two founders subject to shareholder approval, were $7.7 million (or $8 4 million
including the expected proceeds fiom the sale to the two founders) and net proceeds,
after deducting the underwriting discount and offering expenses were approximately

$7.3 million

On August 3, 20190, the Company entered into a Standby Equity Puzchase Agreement
("SEPA"). The SEPA provides that, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set
forth therein, YA Global is committed to purchase up to $10 million of the Company’s
ordinary shares in multiple tranches over a commitment period of up to three years The
Company will issue the ordinary shares under the SEPA pursuant to its effective

Registration Statement

From time to time, and at its sole discretion, the Company may present YA Global with
an advance notice requiring YA Global to puichase ordinary shares. For each ordinary
share purchased under the SEPA, YA Global will pay 95 5% of the lowest daily volume
weighted average price, or VWAP, of the ordinary shares on NASDAQ during the five
NASDAQ #rading days following our advance notice. The amount of each advance
requested may be up to $500,000, unless otherwise mutually agreed to by the Company
and YA Global The amount issued pumsuant to any advance also may not cause the
aggregate number of ordinary shares beneficially owned by YA Global and its affiliates

at any point in time to exceed 4 99% of the Company’s then outstanding ordinary shares.

AL




ORCIIT COMMUNICATIONS L.ID.

(An [siaeli Colporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}

NOTE ¢ - SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY (centinued):

Advances are also subject to the availability of a sufficient aggregate offering price of
ordinary shares 1egistered under the shelf registration statement As of December 31,
2010, no shares had been issued pursuant to the SEPA.

The SEPA provides for a commitment fee equal to 2% of YA Global's commitment, of

which $100,000 in respect of the first $5 miliion of YA Global's commitment, was paid
by the issuance of 36,414 of the Company’s ordinaty shates to YA Global.

NOTE 7 - TAXES ON INCOME:

a.

Tax benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 (the

CCLaWJ 7)

Under the Law, by virtue of the “approved enterprise” status granted to the enterprises of
Corrigent, the holder of the “approved enterprise” status is entitled to varions tax benefits,

including the following:

1)

2)

Reduced tax rates

The period of tax benefits is 7 years, commencing in the first year in which the
Company earns taxable income from the approved enterprise, subject to certain
limitations Income derived fiom the approved entetpiise is tax exempt for a petiod of
2 years, after which the income fiom these enterprises is taxable at reduced tax rates
for 5 years, the temainder of the period of tax benefits

Conditions for entitlement to the benefits

The entitlement to the above benefits is conditional upon fulfilling the conditions
stipulated by the Law, regulations published thereunder and the instruments of
approval for the specific investments in approved eaterprises. In the event of failure to
comply with these conditions, the benefits may be reduced or cancelled and the
Company may be required to refund the amount of the benefits, in whole or in part,
with the addition of linkage differences to the Istaeli CPI and interest

In the event of distribution of cash dividends out of income which was tax exempt as
above, the Company would have to pay 25% tax in respect of the amount distributed.

b. Tax rates applicable to income from other sources:

D

Income from other sources in Israel

Income not eligible for approved enterprise benefits mentioned in Note 7a. above Is

taxed at the regular rate. Amendments to the Israeli Income Tax Ordinance were
enacted that gradually reduce the corporate tax rate from 36% to 25%, in the following
mannet: the rate for 2006 — 31%, 2007 ~29%, 2008 — 27%, 2009 — 26% and 2010 and

thereafter — 25%
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Istaeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOIE 7-TAXES ON INCOME (continued):

In July 2009, the Isracli Parliament (the Knesset) passed the Economic Efficiency Law
{Amended Legislation for implementing the Economic Plan for 2009 and 2010), 2009,
which presctibes, among othet things, an additional gradual reduction in the Israeli
colporate tax rate and 1eal capital gains tax 1ate starting from 2011 to the following tax
tates: 2011 - 24%, 2012 - 23%, 2013 - 22%, 2014 - 21%, 2015 - 20%, 2016 and

thereafter - 18%

2)  Income of non-Istaeli subsidiaries

Non-Istaeli subsidiaties ate taxed according to the tax laws in their countries of residence.

Measurement of the results for tax purposes under the Income Tax (Inflationary
Adjustinents) Law, 1985

Until December 31, 2007, results for tax purposes were measured on a real basis adjusted
for the increasé in the Israeli CPI. As explained in Note 1a(2), the {inancial statements aze
presented in dollars The difference between the change in the Israeli CPI and the NIS-
dollar exchange rate, both on annual and cumulative bases, causes a difference between
taxable income and income 1eflected in these financial statements.

Effective January 1, 2008, the provisions of the Inflationary Adjustments Law will no
longer apply to the Company in 2008 and thereafter

Accounting guidance prohibits the recognition of deferred tax labilities or assets that arise
fiom differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities that
are measured from the local cutrency into dollars using historical exchange rates, and that
result from changes in exchange 1ates or indexing for tax puzposes. Consequently, the
abovementioned differences were not reflected in the computation of deferred tax assets

and liabilities

d. Deferred income taxes

At December 31, 2010, the Company had accumulated tax losses amounting to
approximately $240 million (December 31, 2009 - approximately $219 million) and carry
forward capital losses for tax purposes of apptoximately $65million (December 31, 2009 -
$ 61 million). These losses are mainly denominated in NIS  Accumulated business tax
losses are available indefinitely to offset future taxable business income, and catry forward
capital losses for tax purposes are available indefinitely to offset future capital gains only.
Orckit and each of its subsidiaries are assessed on a stand-alone basis As a result,
accumulated tax losses in each of the entities can offset {uture taxable business income
only in the entify in which they were generated Substantially a!l of the carry forward

amounts have no expiration date.

At December 31, 2010, the Company had a net deferred tax asset (mostly in respect of
canty forward losses and capital losses), in the amount of approximately $61million
(December 31, 2000 - approximately $56 million). The net deferred tax asset increased by
approximately 5 million due to business losses in 2010. (See note 7b(1)) A valuation
allowance for the entire amount of such asset was set up, and consequently no deferred tax
asset is recorded in the balance sheet, since it is moie likely than not that the deferred tax

assets will not be 1ezlized in the foresceable futuwre
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
{An Tsiaeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 7 - TAXES ON INCOME (continued):

¢ Uncertain tax positions:

Following is a reconeiliation of the total amounts of the Company's unrecognized tax
benefits at the beginning and the end of the years ended on December 31, 2008, 2009 and

2010:
Year ended December 31
2008 2009 2010
In thousands

Balance at beginning of yeal $184 $201 $221
Incteases in unrecognized tax benefits as a

result of tax positions taken during a prior

period 17 20 20
Balance at end of vear $201 $221 $241

A summazy of open tax vears by major jurisdiction is presented below:

Jurisdiction: Years:
Istael 2006-2010
United States 2005-2010
Tapan 2003-2010

f  Tax rate reconciliation

In 2010, 2009, and 2008, the main 1econciling item from the statutory tax rate of the
Company (2010 — 25%, tepresenting a theoretical tax benefit of approximately $6 million;
2000 - 26%, tepresenting a theoretical tax benefit of approximately §7.6 million; 2008 -
27%, representing a theoretical tax benefit of approximately $8 7 million) to the effective
tax rate (0%) is the set up of a valuation atlowance against the deferred tax asset c1 eated in

respect of the losses in 2010, 2009 and 2008.
NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT:
a. Balances in non-dollar currencies:

1) Asfollows:
December 31

2009 2010
In thousands
Assets $28,596 $26,244
Liabilities $29,603 $32,639

The non U S dollar amounts above mainly represent balances in Israeli currency

T—Ars




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An [sracti Cotporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)::

2)  Data regarding the 1ate of exchange and the istaeli CPL:

Year ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
Rate of evaluation of the Israeli
cutrency against the dollar (I DH% (0 7Y% (6 0%
Rate of devaluation (evaluation) of the Yen
against the dollar (19.1)% (2 D)% 13.1%
3.8% 3.9% 2.7%

Rate of increase in the Istaeli CP1

Exchange rate at end of year - § 1= NIS3802 NIS3775 NIS3549

b. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments included in working capital is usually identical or

close to their carrying value.

As to the fair value of the Company’s securities that are held to maturity and available for

sale, see Note 9z

As to the fair value of the Company’s convertible subordinated notes, see Note 4

¢. Concentrations of credit risks

At December 31, 2009 and 2010, substantially all of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents
were held by international and Istaeli banks. Substantially alt of the Company’s marketable
secutities wete held by international and Istaeli banks. Such securities represented debentures

issued by a number of US and Israeli corporations and agencies

The Company evaluates on a current basis its financial exposure with any financial
institution or commercial 1ssuel

The trade receivable balance at Decembet 31, 2009 and 2010 was derived from several
customers. The Company is of the opinion that the exposute to credit risk refating to these
trade receivables is limited
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS L1D.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAT STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 8 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT (continued):

d.  Ttems Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following table presents the company’s assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a tecuiting basis at Decembet 51, 2010 and 2009 (§ in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at Repoxfing Date

Using
Level 1 Tevel 2 Level 3 Total
December 31,2010
Assets:
$20,439 $7,497 $27,936

Available for sale secuities
Derivatives — presented net of
convertible notes among
$1 §1

long-term liabilities

December 31, 2009

Assets:
$220 $10,670

Available for sale secutities $10,450

Derivatives — presented net of
convertible nofes among
328 $28

long-term liabilities

Level 1- Valuations based on quoted prices in active maikets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Company has the ability to access. Valuation adjustments and block discounts are
not applied to Level 1 insttuments. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that are
readily and regularly available in an active market, valuation of these products does not
entaif a significant degree of judgment Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 1 inputs include
available for sale securities traded in an active market.

Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices in markets that are not active or for which all
significant inputs are observable, either directly ot indirectly. Assets and liabilities utilizing
Level 2 inputs include available for sale securities which are not traded in an active market
[he calculation is based on observable inputs including interest 1ate curves and publicly

available discount 1ates.

Level 3 - Valuations based on inputs that ate unobservable and significant to the overall fair
value measurement Assets utilizing Tevel 3 inputs include the fair value of the derivatives
embeded in the convertible subordinated notes , which are determined using a valuation
modef. The valuzation model relies on Level 3 inputs including, among other things: (1)
estimated future volatility of the Company’s share price; (ii) future risk free interest rates;
and {iii) expected period in which the notes will be converted. These estimated fair values
are subject to uncertainties that are difficult to predict; therefore these derivatives have been
classified as Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The derivatives' fair value at December 31, 2009
was recorded as an asset of approximately $28,000. During the year ended December 31,
2010, the fair value of the derivatives increased by $29,000, and at December 31, 2010 were

presented as a [iability of approximately $1,000
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ORCKIT COMMUNICATIIONS LID
(An Istaeli Coiporation)

NOTES 1O CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION:
Balance sheets:

a.  Marketable secur ities:

Consist of;
December 31

2009 2010
I'n thousands
Carrying amounis

Classified as “heid to maturity” $25,416 -
Classified as “available for sale” 10,670 27,936
334,086 $27.936
Held-to-maturity mearkeiable securities
{he securities mature over the following years:
Mature within [2 months - Classified as
short-term investments $7,500
Mature after one year up to 2 yea:s 2,706
Mature after two years up to 3 vears 3,749
Mature after three years up to 10 yeats 9,461
: $23,410

On December 31, 2010, the Company reclassified its entire portion of investment portfolio
classified as held-to-maturity to available-foi-sale because based on management evaluation,
it might not hold these securities to maturity but zather use a portion of the funds. -

At December 31, 2009, the amortized cost basis, aggregate fair value and unrealized holding
gains and losses for held to maturity securities were as foliows:

Amortized Aggregate Unrealized Unrealized
cost fair vaiue gains losses
$ in thousands
December 31, 2000:
Quoted Israeli .
corporate debentures %$7.351 $6,441 $39 $ (949)
Quoted non-Israeli
cotporate debentures 3,605 3,673 68 —
Non-quoted Israeli ‘
corporate debentures *%12,460 12,663 640 (437
$23,416 §22,777 $747 $(1,386)

#  Of which approximately $4 9 million have e;xpe[ienced unrealized losses for more than 12

months.
#% Of which approximately $1 .0 million have experienced unrealized losses for more than 12

months

The difference between the carrying amounts and the fair value results from a decrease in
market value in comparison to the amortization of the premium paid for the securities and
in certain cases a market pricing different from the book value of the note. In cases where
other than temporary decline in fair value of a secutity occurs, an impairment charge would
be recorded. The Company considers various factors in determining whethet to recognize
an impairment charge, including the length of time and the extent to which the fais vaiue
has been below the cost basis, the cuirent financial condition of the entity that issued the
security and the anticipated recovery in market value on the time left until maturity
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ORCKIT COVDMUNICATIONSLTD.
(An Israeli Corpotation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION (continued):
Available for sale marketable securifies

The securities matuie over the following years:
December 31

2009 2010

In thousands L

Mature within 12 months $2,777 $11,585 &
Mature aftet one year up to 2 years 5,082 5,629
Mature after two years up to 3 vears 1,271 3,290

Matwe after one year up to 7 years (2009 — 8

yvears) 1,540 7,132
$10,670 $27.936

As of December 31, 2010 the company presents its available-for-sale secutities based on its
maturity date. Securities maturing within the next 12 months ate presented as current assets
and secutities maturing after 12 months are presented as long-term investments.

At December 31, 2009 and 2010, the amortized cost basis, aggregate fair value and
unrealized holding gains and losses by securities were as follows:

Amortized Agoregate Unrealized Unrealized
cost fair value gains losses
In thousands
December 31, 2009:
Quoted US
corporate debentures 5,306 5,318 14 (2)
Quoted Istaeli
cotporate debentures 6,261 5,132 146 {1,275)
Non-quoted Israeli
corporate debentures 211 220 12 3)
' 11,778 10,670 172 *(1,280)
December 31, 2010-
Quoted Israeli
corporate debentures 13,240 12,385 551 (1,406)
Quoted non-Istaeli
corporate debentures 8,065 8.054 5 (16)
Non-quoted Israeli '- -
corporate debentures 7,493 7,497 9 . {5)
28,798 27,936 565 FE(LA27)

including an 6ther—than—temporary impairment of $512,000 which was recorded as financiaj

expense in the consolidated statement of operations
*%  Including an other-than-temporary impairment of approximately $1 million which was recorded

as financial expense in the consolidated statement of operations




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS L1ID.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTIS (continued)

NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION (continued):

b Trade receivables -

Pecember 31

2009 2010 i
In thousands s
5458 $6,624

open accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2009 and 2010 was zero

December 31

2009 L 2010
In thousands

¢. Other current assets:
Government of Israel $710 $1,517
Prepaid expenses 403 622
Advances to suppliers : 995
Sundry 32 63
$1,145 $3,197
d. Inventories:
Raw materials $s542 $169
Finished goods 2,160 3,014
52,702 $3,183

In the year ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, the Company wrote-off
inventory in the amount of $365,000 and $508,000 respectively. There were no

wiite-offs in 2008

e. Bank deposit

At December 31, 2009, the Company had bank deposits amounting to $4 million
denominated in dollats that bear an average interest at a rate of 1 4% per year, the deposits

realized in 2010,




ORCEKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An Istaeli Colporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION (continued):

f. Accrued expenses and other payables:
December 31

2009 2010
In thousands

T

Accrued expenses in respect of deferied income, see g. below $65 $91 #
Employees and employee institutions 819 1,672 -
Provision for vacation pay 1,026 1,101
Provision for watranty * 998 911
Accrued royalties and commitments 1,888 1,249
Accrued interest 367 400
Advances from customers 233 279
Executives 470 130
Sundry 1,110 1,077

$6,976 $6,910

Year ended December 31
2008 2009 2010
In thousands

* The changes in the balance during the year:

Balance at beginning of year $1,473 $894 $998

Payments made under the warranty (402) (344) (440)

Product warianties issued for new sales 602 448 550

Changes in accrual in respect of pre-existing (779) (197)
warranties

Balance at end of year $894 $998 $911

g. Deferred revenues:

December 31
2009 2010
In thousands

$1,431 $2,024
(60) o1)
*$1,371 *$1,933

Revenues to be recognized in futwie periods
Applicable PCS, warranty and other costs

Year ended December 31
2008 2009 2010
In thousands

* The changes 1z the balance during the year:

Balance at beginning of year $1,045 $2,787 $1,371
Recognized during the year (1,045) (2,181) {849)
Deferred income relating to new sales 2,787 765 1,411

Balance at end of vear $2,787 $1,371 $1,933




ORCIUIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.
(An Israeli Corporation}

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION (continued):

Statements of operations:
. Segment information and revenues from principal customers

The Company operates in one opeiating segment, Disaggregated financial data is
provided below as follows: (1) revenues by geographic atea; and (2) 1evenues from

principal customets:
1} Geographic information

Following is a summary of 1evenues by geographic area. The Company sells its
g Y Y 2608 _ _
products mainly to telecommunications catriers Revenues are attributed to geographic

areas based on the location of the end users as follows:
Year ended December 31

2008 - 2009 2010
Tn thousands

Tapan 37,969 36,015 $3,485
Germany 7,615 1,725 1,947
Korea 824 2,916 242
United States - 1,655 135
India 5,852
Sweden 1,360
Other 848 416 1,610

$17,256 $12,727 $14,631

Majority of the Company’s ptoperty and equipment is located in Israel.

2) Revenues fiom principal customers - revenues from a singfe customer that exceeds

10% of total revenues in the relevant year: ‘
Year ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
In thousands

Customer A $7,846 $5,604 $3,387
Custoiner B $7,615 $1,725 $968
Customer C $824 $2,916 3242
Custemer D S $1,655 $135
Customer E . -y 55,858

i Cosf of revennes:
Year ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
In thousands

Materials consumed, subcontractors

and other production expenses §7,417 7,613 8,234
Payroll and related expenses 1,654 1,042 1,173
Depreciation 197 168 230
Increase in inventories of finished products (130) {1,429) (834)
Other 468 848 557

£9,608 $8,244 $9,340

Lt}




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LID.

(An Istaeii Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOIE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION (continued):

]. Research and development expenses - net:

Total expenses _
Less - grants and participations, see Note 5a

k. Financial expenses - nef:

Income:
Interest on bank deposits _
Gain and interest on marketable securities
Other (including mainly currency
transaction gains, net)

Expenses:

Interest in respect of convertible
subordinated notes and bank loans

Amortization of convertible subordinated
notes issuance costs and discount

Impairment and loss from the sale of
matketable securities

Other (mainly curtency transaction
losses and bank charges, net)

Year ended December 31

2008 2009 2010
In thousands

$24.025 $15,330 $16,667
2,066 1,722 2,569
$22.859 $13,608 $14,098
$119 $72 $17
4,927 2,901 2,167
180 28 -
$5,226 $3,001 $2,184
$3,159 $2,137 $1,962
1,366 1,129 1,333
880 97 447
ES kD 84
5,405 3,363 3,826
$(179) $(362) $(1,642)




ORCKIT COMMUNICATIONS LTD.
(An [sraelt Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 9 - SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION (continued):

L I'ransactions with related parties:

Since fuly 1, 2003, the Company has piovided Tikcro, atelated party, with certain
administrative services. The amount paid by Tikero for such services for each of the three

years ended December 31, 2010 was $48,000

As to the purchase of shates and warrants by two executives, see note 6f

m. ILoss per share:

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, options to purchase a total amount of 5,882,123,
5,167,509 and 5,310,025 shares, tespectively, were not taken into account, because of their anti
dilutive effect or because performance based options did not have goals which wete probable to

be met

As of December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, an aggregate of 2,038,000, 1,543,000 and 1,285,714
shares respectively, which could be issued in connection with the conversion of convertible
subordinated notes were not taken into account because of their anti-dilutive effect

As of December 31, 2010, warrants to purchase a total amount of 2,385,771 shares, were not
taken into account, because of their anti dilutive effect.

s
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